	$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	BEFORE THE NEW MEXICO MEDICAL BOARD
П	3	IN THE MATTER OF
Ļ	4	,
П		SHELLY SELLA, M.D.
	5	License No MD2000 0750
		No. 2012-026
	6	Respondent.)
	7	
	8	
П	9	
	10	MEDICAL BOARD HEARING
	11	VOLUME I
	12	November 29, 2012
	13	9:00 a.m.
	1 7 2	NM Medical Society Offices
	14	316 Osuna Road, NE
	15	Albuquerque, New Mexico
7	16	TAKEN BEFORE: DAVID K. THOMPSON
		TAKEN BEFORE: DAVID K. THOMPSON HEARING OFFICER
7	17	MEANTING OFFICER
J	18	REPORTED BY: B. Julian Serna
7		Paul Baca Court Reporters
	19	500 Fourth Street, NW - Suite 105
7		Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102
]	20	
7	21	APPEARANCES
	22	Hearing Officer:
,	23	THOMPSON LAW OFFICE, LLC
	24	303 Paseo de Peralta
1	24	Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501
	25	505-982-1873
		BY: DAVID THOMPSON
L.		

it's not going to be an exhibit." Well, it may not have an exhibit sticker on it, but except for the sticker, it's going to be in the record as a separate document. There's no allowance in the record for this, and I would say that there is a rule of opening briefs, the Medical Board does have a rule of opening briefs, and it makes no mention, it doesn't contemplate a brief before the hearing at all whatsoever. You can say -- I believe you're familiar with the rule, 16-10-624, and it does allow briefs, but it's only 15 days after receipt of the transcript. These are post-hearing briefs in this rule. The exclusion of some is the exclusion of others. I'm not going to try to quote the

Latin on that in front of a law professor. MR. GOLDBERG: Not any more.

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2

3

4

5

8

9

10

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. RUBIN: Formal law professor. Nonetheless,

of my particular findings of fact or conclusions of law but, again, will serve as a simple road map.

Let me state on the record one other matter that I overlooked. There was a Respondent's motion to close the hearing. The Hearing Officer issued an order November 28th, 2012, closing the hearing. I believe the order is sufficient, states sufficient reasons under 61-1-7(B) to close the hearing. I just want to place that on the record in case that is eventually reviewed by the Board or a district court, the ground by which that decision was made. Okay. So any other motions? MR. RUBIN: Mr. Hearing Officer, not a motion but

3 (Pages 6 to 9)

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 10 just a point. Your order on closing the hearing spends sometime discussing the concern that I think we all have about patient confidentiality.

MR. THOMPSON: Uh-huh.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

2

3

6

7

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. RUBIN: The exhibits that I've given you, which are not objected to, 1 through 3, have all had the patient's name redacted.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay.

MR. RUBIN: So I think that's a concern in any case, not just the case involving reproductive rights, that we protect the patient's identity. So we've done that, and the hearing, the transcript I think in support and for the record that no mention should be made of this patient's name -- initials, I suppose -- I'm just going to refer to the patient. I'm going to ask my witnesses to do the same.

MR. GOLDBERG: Yeah, we referred to the patient both in the written, all the written submissions and so far in this case as ML, and I think that that's an appropriate way to refer to her. We did not redact the patient's name from our exhibits. My understanding is the Board -- the Board, itself, does not take redacted documents as part of its practice. I have no idea what their practice is as part of the exhibits in a hearing, but when you deal with the Board as an agency, they will not take redacted documents, and so we did not redact, and we have relatively voluminous

Page 12 the record is made. As long as the court reporter understands and everybody agrees, we're happy to take the 2 exhibits after they've been admitted and redact them. 3 4

MR. THOMPSON: Yes, and that will be the process I'll request in this case. We'll admit the exhibits. The exhibits will be sealed for purposes of this hearing. A final record will be provided to the court reporter of those same exhibits with the patient's confidentiality information redacted.

MR. RUBIN: Let the record reflect that the court reporter has nodded in agreement.

12 MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Anything else? 13 MR. RUBIN: Nothing here except the case, of 14 course.

MR. THOMPSON: State has the burden. Would you 15 16 like to proceed with your opening? 17

MR. RUBIN: Thank you, Mr. Thompson.

An opening statement is about what the evidence will show. I think it also should be about what the evidence will not show, and the evidence in this case is going to not go into anything involving reproductive rights, so to speak. This is not a case about reproductive rights. This is not a

case about the legality of a particular type of abortion. 23 This is a case about the standard of care and whether it was 24

followed in a particular case, in this particular case, by

Page 11

exhibits, and — and, of course, some of those exhibits 1 contain the patient's name.

MR. RUBIN: I think that we can deal with it for the purposes of this hearing. Certainly as a matter of 4 investigation, the Board doesn't want to see anything redacted, but for hearings, I think it's incorrect to say that we don't present redacted records as part of a hearing exhibit. So I think the best way to handle this, and Mr. Goldberg can correct me if I'm wrong, is we can proceed to hearing. I think before the exhibits are submitted to the Hearing -- to the court reporter, I would get them redacted, because I anticipate that there might be other parties, third parties out there in the public who are going to request a copy of everything, and if they do that, we're going to have to redact them at some point. I'd rather do that it up front than have any argument made that there is a -- that these were made part of the record before they were redacted.

MR. GOLDBERG: We have no -- we have no problem redacting, subsequent to their introduction, references to the patient to preserve the patient's privacy as long as everybody agrees to it and the Hearing Officer agrees to it and the court reporter understands, but my understanding as in court and in these hearings, once the exhibits are admitted, they sort of belong to the court reporter until

Dr. Sella.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

18

19

20

21

22

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

We will submit evidence that Dr. Sella in this case with this patient administered drugs that are contradicted by well-established guidelines, guidelines established by the American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology, unequivocal guidelines that -- and the evidence will also show that the administering of these drugs coupled with other risk factors, which were readily apparent in this case, lead to an unacceptable risk of uterine rupture for the patient.

Third, and this is a separate argument, assuming somehow that these risks of uterine rupture were acceptable and some -- could somehow be acceptable, they would not be acceptable within a clinical setting where the -- this type of risk is very difficult, if not impossible, to manage.

And fourth, as the NCA reflects, we've alleged gross 16 negligence. The evidence is going to show that Dr. Sella willfully disregarded these risks in her choice of what --18 again, in choice of what medications were given to the patient and where this procedure was conducted; that she willfully disregarded that. And, of course, the element, any -- any case for negligence including gross negligence does require damages as an element of it. There's no civil lawsuit here, thank you goodness, but the damages we will also prove, because this is the sad and tragic fact, that

4 (Pages 10 to 13)

Page 13

1

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

This is not about abortion rights. This is similar to any other -- most any other cases that I would bring as a prosecutor. If there was a case where a physician should not have performed a knee replacement surgery or not have prescribed a certain pain medication, that is not to say that we should make any kind of knee replacement surgery or pain medication illegal. This Medical Board is about medical ethics, not about legality.

And so the evidence, again, will show the following: We will have Dr. Bullock who is a licensed physician in Texas who will be presenting most of the evidence on behalf of the Prosecution with regard to the opinions that we believe you should follow in this case. We will also present first Dr. Sella who will I believe provide the facts, which I do not believe are going to be in dispute as to -- as to what happened. Thank you.

MR. THOMPSON: That certainly was one of -obviously one of my questions early on, and it would probably be just as quick as having those facts come out through a witness than through stipulation as it seems. So

Page 16 Bullock's testimony, because as the Hearing Officer knows as we stated in our opening brief, it depends on who's version 2 of the medical records is, in fact, accepted and operates in 3 this case, because Dr. Bullock very seriously and very 4 substantially misread the medical records, and as a 5 consequence came to a series of incorrect, unfounded --6

MR. RUBIN: Let me --

7

8

9

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

6

7

9

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. GOLDBERG: This is my opening statement -incorrect and unfounded conclusions that form the basis of his opinion, which form the basis of the Notice of Charge in 10 this case. That's relevant. The issue of the reproductive 12 rights is relevant, because the standard of care that Dr. Bullock applies in this case -- the standard of care that Dr. Bullock applies in this case and which the prosecutor suggests to the Hearing Officer and the Board to be adopted, in fact, needs to be considered in terms of what will happen to the administration of the procedures that are at the heart of this case.

What the evidence is going to show, Mr. Hearing Officer, is that the procedure that was involved in this case was called a third trimester abortion, sometimes called late-term abortion, but a third trimester abortion on a woman of a gestational age of 35 weeks. That means the fetus is 35 weeks developed, which is not term. Term is 40 weeks and above, but who presented for a third trimester

Page 15

okay. So your only witness -- well, two witnesses, Dr. Sella with regard to the facts of the treatment of ML. MR. RUBIN: Uh-huh.

MR. THOMPSON: And then Dr. Bullock with regard to the standard of care.

MR. RUBIN: That's correct. There's only one expert for each side as I understand with regard to opinions in this case. Thank you.

MR. THOMPSON: All right. For the Respondent, understanding again I've read your opening brief.

MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you, Mr. Thompson. I'm actually going to respond to what \mathbf{I} — what \mathbf{I} understood Mr. Rubin to be saying in his opening statement. I agree with Mr. Rubin that central to the hearing and to the findings and conclusions of the Hearing Officer must address and the decision that the Board must make is what is the standard of care that should be applicable here, but I disagree with Mr. Rubin when he says that the issue of the reproductive rights of women and the procedures that are at the heart of this case are irrelevant. They are not.

I also, to address the Hearing Officer's question about whether there are facts in dispute, I don't know the answer to that yet. There certainly have been facts in dispute in this case all the way up to the present. I won't know whether there are facts in dispute until I actually hear Dr.

Page 17 abortion at the clinic that Dr. Sella works in, the clinic

here at Albuquerque New Mexico, Southwest Women's Options. 2 3 We will refer to it as SWOC.

The evidence will show that there -- in the entire 4 United States there are only four clinics that provide 5 late-term abortions; that is, third trimester abortions, to women in this country, Southwest Women's Options here in Albuquerque, a clinic in Los Angeles, a clinic in Boulder, Colorado, and a clinic in Baltimore, Maryland. You'll also hear that while there are some hospitals in this country that provide a few late-term abortions only -- the overwhelming majority of late-term abortions; that is third trimester abortions, are provided in these clinics, and that while the number of third trimester abortions in this country is relatively small compared to the number of total abortions provided in this country, the women who seek third trimester abortions like ML in this case are women who come with desperate need. You're going to hear evidence on all of that.

Now, why am I saying this? Why are these issues with respect to fundamental reproductive rights relevant? And they're relevant for the following purpose: The standard -that's the practice in this country. The practice in this country ---

MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. This is way

5 (Pages 14 to 17)

9

14

15

25

6

7

8

9

10

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

23

24

1 getting over the line of arguments.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

б

7

8

9

10

11

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MR. GOLDBERG: The practice in this country is the practice ---

> MR. RUBIN: Mr. Hearing Officer? MR. THOMPSON: Overruled.

MR. GOLDBERG: The practice in this country is that the overwhelming majority of these procedures occur in clinics. What Dr. Bullock is going to tell the Hearing Officer and what Mr. Rubin is going to assert to the Board is that no third trimester abortions on women with prior C-sections, which amount to 20 to 30 percent of the women giving birth in this country, no third trimester abortion can occur in a clinic outside of a hospital setting.

So what the standard of care that is being offered here turns the reality of the practice in this country upside down, on its head, and the Hearing Officer must take that into consideration. The Board must take that into consideration. The Hearing Officer and the Board must take into consideration what actually is being practiced out in the country, in the community. The Board asserts a national standard of care, and we're going to present the national standard of care. The Board -- but the national standard of care that the Board's going to present is going to, in fact, prohibit any woman with a prior C-section from obtaining an abortion outside of a hospital setting, and you will hear

report that was the basis of the charge here if that issue 2 remains live in the case. Doctor -- the issues that are 3 alive in this case are a moving target. Dr. Bullock said 4 that Ms. -- ML was not adequately counseled on the risk of 5 uterine rupture. That was false. That was incorrect, and 6 Dr. Robinson's going to testify to that as is another staff 7 member at Southwest, and that is a woman by the name of 8 Susan Douda, D-o-u-d-a.

And then finally we're going to present evidence 10 through a paralegal in our office, Ms. Tope, who's going to testify that contrary to the interpretation of one of the 11 12 ACOG Bulletins that Dr. Bullock makes, that his 13 interpretation is not the practice in New Mexico nor actually is it the practice anywhere else, and she's going to do that through testimony of a survey that was taken.

16 In conclusion, as much as Mr. Rubin would like to 17 artificially disentangle, disentangle the charge in this 18 case from the procedure that is at the heart of this case, 19 it cannot be disentangled, and the proof of that, one of the 20 fundamental proofs of that and of significant concern in this case is that -- is how the charge arose in this case. 21 22 The charge in this case did not arise because any colleague or any doctor in New Mexico brought a complaint to the 23 24 Board.

MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Again, first,

Page 19

testimony that that will preclude virtually all women with prior C-sections from obtaining a third trimester abortion. You must take that into consideration.

Our witness will be Dr. Sella, who will testify about what actually occurred in her treatment of ML and not what Dr. Bullock misread the medical records as occurring. You will then hear from our expert, Dr. Darney, a world renowned, one of the word's leading experts in obstetrics and gynecology, in maternal health and in terminations of pregnancies; that is, abortion. He's a distinguished professor at the University of California San Francisco School of Medicine -- here is Dr. Darney. He is -- we're going to go through his qualifications, but he is, in fact, one of the world's leading experts in this area, and he's going to testify that, in fact, the standard of care that Dr. Bullock asserts is bogus; that that is not the standard of care that practitioners around the country in clinics and out of clinics adhere to, and he's going to testify to what will be the effect on the administration of this legal in New Mexico and important medical procedure if the standard of care that is asserted by the Board is adopted.

We are also going to introduce through evidence the testimony of Dr. Susan Robinson, who is a colleague of Dr. Sella's at Southwest Women's Options Clinic, who is going to address one of the issues raised in Dr. Bullock's expert

Page 21

it's argument. Second of all, how is it relevant? We can 1 make a ruling right now, I believe, as to how this case was 3 charged. We have an NCA. That's where the case begins. As 4 to what happened internally, I do not see how that is

relevant to the ultimate facts in this case, and we can avoid a lot of testimony that way if we can just have a ruling on that.

MR. THOMPSON: I'm going to overrule the objection. I am curious, though, and will take it, whenever we have the witnesses that discusses this, about the relevance of how the -- I understand how the complaint came in, and I understand the outside forces and those things that are effecting, but how -- how does it change the issue of the standard, whether or not the doctor met the standard of care as to how the complaint came in?

MR. GOLDBERG: It's relevant in two ways, Mr. Hearing Officer, both to the definition of the standard of care and, also, to the extent to which the standard of care was -- if the standard of care was breached. There is no doubt, no one is going to testify -- I believe no one is going to testify in this case that the risk of uterine rupture is not a known risk for these procedures. No one's going to testify to that. Everybody's going to recognize all of the documents, all of the testimony, all of the doctors that are going to be here, in fact, and all the

1 doctors in this everybody recognizes that a risk of 2 uterine rupture is a known risk. It's a known risk of 3 birth. It's a known risk of termination of pregnancies. 4 It's a known risk of birth without induction of labor, 1 There's a separate copy for the witness. 2 SHELLY SELLA, MD 3 after having been first duly sworn under oath, 4 was questioned and testified as follows:	Page :
2 Uterine rupture is a known risk, It's a known risk of 3 birth. It's a known risk of termination of pregnancies. 4 It's a known risk of birth with a trade of pregnancies. 3 after having been first duly swom under oath,	_
5 birth. It's a known risk of termination of pregnancies. 4 It's a known risk of hitth with with a trade of hitch with with with with a trade of hitch with with with with with with with wit	
1 4 ILS 3 KNOWN PREV AF BIRTH WILL A STATE OF THE STATE O	
1 5 Spontaneous labor. Tele a lengua del Colo	
6 induced. It's a known risk for women with Constions. The	
The state of the s	
MO DURAL TO WILLIAM WILLIAM CONTROL OF SECTIONS. It's a known 17	
1 Sk dide to be disu - there's going to be no	
9 controversy, that risk occurred here.	
10 It's relevant - it's relevant - it's relevant	
1.11 assertion from the record that MI was not advantage	
11/ COMPSEING that she had made as a second	
11) Made no complaint have 1/. 1 1.	
14 Colleague from a doctor as food don't get a complaint from a	
15 Where the complaint and patient. You know 14 general experience in the area of pregnancy terminal	tion and
	Car koo
	20 A 1192
17 Televant in terms of both what the standard of care is here	
18 and was the standard of care departed. If, in fact, MI had	
complained to the Board, that would be Mr. Ruhin would be 10	
1 AU THEIR OF SOMODOOU HAS BY D. E	
1// IUP Id/T TD2T Cho had had a	(2)
17) STANDARD OF CARO AND L. II	40
24 why it's relevant	
1.44 acronym TOLAC T-O LA CO	
25 MR. THOMPSON: But you're proving it in the it 25 A. Yes.	
P 22	
Page 23 1 seems to me I won't need to press it, but it seems to me 1 Q. And what does that stand for?	Page 25
I / Then Is it required? And the control of the con	-
5 COUNTED in the second in the second little in the	
5 is required for the will the evidence show that it 4 little bit what you understand what you understand	that
5 concent to mean?	
A. That refers to a person who's had a prior	
7 C-section and is attempting a vacinal delivery in a	
8 subsequent pregnancy.	
9 O. Okay. So after 2000 you dedicated your design of the control	ĺ
MR. GOLDBERG: That's not our position. This is 10 to abortions, pregnancy terminations?	
11 this is a this is a relevant but not not conclusive 11 A. Correct.	
17 piece of midones Net	
13 VOU proceed the vistant and	ACs
14 porcont Didden !- It is a !	
15 original is released to the freeding Officer Knows,	
The only provides a piece of the	
Q. Sure.	
MR. THOMPSON: Okay. Very good. With openings 17 A. I'm overreading the question.	1
18 Concluded, is the State prepared to proceed?	
MR. RUBIN: Yes, Mr. Hearing Officer. 19 second time, but that's all right. So you have not	3
20 MD TUDINGS -1	. 1
THE MAD DISTRICT TO A SHOW WITH THE PARTY OF	ndred
)) Du Challagaille a	ny
22 TOLAGS SINCE that time?	The state of the s
A. The cared for patients who've had prior	Hode
MR. ROBIN: Mr. Hearing Officer, that is your 24 C-sections requesting terminations.	Cal-ago
25 copy. You're holding in your hand a copy of the exhibits. 25 Q. Okay. Have you outside of the context of a	
SWELDOWN STREET	
7 (Pages 22	2- 251

	Page : MR. RUBIN: And I have no objection to the entry	1	Page 1 O. Okay. Was it prior to the nations subconvently.
	2 at this point of Exhibit 8 for that reason, so you can look		 Q. Okay. Was it prior to the patient subsequently arriving in Albuquerque?
	at whatever you'd like, Dr. Sella.		3 A. Yes.
	THE WITNESS: Okay.	-	
1	MR. THOMPSON: Let me instruct you, Dr. Sella,		Q. And when Dr. Robinson consulted with you, did
1			5 was there any information that she left out that's on
1 7			6 this form?
8			A. No, she told me about the abnormalities, the brain
9			8 abnormalities. She told me about the conversations that she
10			had had with the — with the patient and her family. We
11	the state of the s	1	That
12	The state of the s		
	-	12	Q. Okay.
13	, and advised that the padelic filled	1.	
14		14	Q003 looks like an unlined piece of paper with
15	Company (Interpret	15	some handwritten writing on it?
16		16	5 A. Yes.
17	Tour I	17	Q. And it says "Dr. Robinson" at the bottom?
18	TOTAL COLL	18	A. Yes.
19	e e y manny anay, rate vino performed the	19	Q. CSR?
20	•	20	A. Yes.
21	A. Initially MMS are the initials. Should I tell you	21	t in a second se
22 23		22	The sense as white was the next step in this
24	to more padding to the	23	•
25	A. No, Molly Mae Serna. Q. Okay.	24	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		25	Q. Uh-huh.
1	Page 31		Page
1	A. And she got information about the patient, that	1	A. The next step was the day that she arrived to the
2	she was a 26 year old. On the phone intake it says G2.	2	
4	Actually she was a G3 P1, miscarriage one. She had had a prior C-section.	3	Q. Okay. And when was that?
5	Q. Okay.	4	A. And that was on May 10th.
6		5	Q. All right. And so could you show me, did you take
7	A. She had no medical problems, and she was at 33 weeks gestation,	6	any notes on May 10th?
8	Q. Is the phone intake the first two pages here of	7	A. Yes. On May 10th the patient came in with her
9	Exhibit 1?	8	mother and her husband.
10	A. Yes.	9	Q. Okay.
11	Q. And so when did you when were you apprised of	10	A. She filled out paperwork. She had an ultrasound,
12	this phone intake and the contents of it?	111	met with the counselor.
13	Well, what happened was she explained why she was	12	MR. GOLDBERG: Might be helpful to the Hearing
14	seeking a termination; that the fetus had severe brain	13	Officer if you give him a page reference.
15		14	THE WITNESS: Okay. The medical history is on
	abnormalities. The phone counselor consulted with the	15	-012, -013 and then it's followed by consents. When they
	physician who was at the clinic that week, which was Dr. Susan Robinson.	16	met with the counselor, risks and complications were
18	O. Susan?	17	discussed, and she signed consents -014 through -017.
10 19		18	MR. RUBIN: Is the Hearing Officer following?
20 29		19	MR. THOMPSON: I am.
20 21	•	20	MR. RUBIN: If we're going too fast
	A. Dr. Robinson had numerous conversations with the	21	MR. THOMPSON: Yes, I'm following.
	family, and Dr. Robinson then consulted with me by phone	22	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) Okay. If we could just step back
	about this case.	23	for a second, just a few of the pages that we've skipped an
23	0. 0/	-	gotting to the medical bisham.
	Q. Okay. And when did Dr. Robinson consult with you? A. I don't know the exact date.	24 25	getting to the medical history

	Page 3	4	Dane.
	1 Q I see an obstetrics report here. I believe	1	Q. And what's the second entry there?
	2 it's my Bate stamp. My Bate stamping is off, so if you	2	A. OFD.
	3 could locate that for me	3	Q. And what is OFD?
	4 A. You're talking about the ultrasound?	4	A. I don't know.
	5 Q. It says it's titled Obstetrics Report.	5	O. You don't know?
	6 A. Yes.	6	A. It's not a measurement that I use.
	7 Q. Okay. Is that can you get to that page?	7	Q. Okay. What is the third one?
	8 A. Sure.	8	A. HC is head circumference.
	9 MR. RUBIN: Is the Hearing Officer there?	9	Q. Head circumference. Okay. And what does it say
	.0 THE WITNESS: It's -009.	10	with regard to the gestational age?
1		11	A. Forty weeks, four days.
1		12	Q. Okay. How does is head circumference
13		13	obviously it's a measurement of the size of the head as
14		14	well, the circumference?
1.5		15	A. Uh-huh.
16		16	Q. So the circumference, the diameter, it's like
17		17	roughly like, assuming the head is of this size, a circle or
18	•	18	a sphere around it?
19		19	A. In this situation, yes.
20		20	Q. Okay. And then let's skip to the bottom one here,
21		21	I see the words, "Estimated FW." What does that stand for
22		22	A. The estimated fetal weight.
23		23	Q. And what does it say there?
24		24	A. 2,471 grams; 5 pounds, 7 ounces.
25	5 Patients Involved, which I believe has been redacted. The	25	Q. Okay. And can you give us a little bit of
	Page 35		Page
1		1	Page background, a little explanation as to how this is
	z voly took only our four that.		
	2 A Where are vou?	1	
	A. Where are you? O. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report.	2	estimated, do you know?
3	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report.	2 3	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated?
3 4	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry?	2 3 4	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right.
3 4 5	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry.	2 3 4 5	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements
3 4 5 6	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken.
3 4 5 6 7	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first	2 3 4 5 6 7	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used.
3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The blometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that and
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The blometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means? A. That means based on the size of the head it	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that an reading that correctly?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means? A. That means based on the size of the head it measured 39 weeks, 2 days.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that an reading that correctly? A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means? A. That means based on the size of the head it measured 39 weeks, 2 days. Q. So in other words, if there was the typical	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that — an reading that correctly? A. Yes. Q. And that sort of repeats what we just discussed of
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means? A. That means based on the size of the head it measured 39 weeks, 2 days. Q. So in other words, if there was the typical	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that an reading that correctly? A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. I'm at the bottom of the Obstetrics Report. A. Okay. The biometry? Q. Biometry. A. Yes. Q. Okay. What is the first what is the first entry there? A. The BPD. Q. And what is BPD? A. The BPD is the biparietal diameter. It's a measurement taken between the two parietal bones. Q. So that's roughly a measure of the diameter of the fetus's head? A. Yes. Q. And it says 96.3 millimeters? A. Yes. Q. And then it has, "G.age: 39W2D." Can you explain what that means? A. That means based on the size of the head it measured 39 weeks, 2 days. Q. So in other words, if there was the typical fetus that would gestate to 39 weeks, 2 days would be	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	estimated, do you know? A. How is the weight estimated? Q. That's right. A. The weight is a composite from the measurements taken. Q. I see. So the measurements above are then used come up with that result at the bottom? A. Yes. Q. It's not based upon any direct observation? A. No. Q. Or any direct weighing either? A. No. Q. Okay. And then the next page, the Obstetrics Report continues, correct? A. Yes. Q. And at the bottom under the comments, there's a bunch of the bullets at the bottom. Six I believe. It say here, "BPD and H, C90, to 39 to 45 weeks." Is that — an reading that correctly? A. Yes. Q. And that sort of repeats what we just discussed of

	Page	38	D- 40
1		J 1	Page 40 L A. I saw what was given to the lawyers.
2	A. Yes,		2 Q. Okay.
3	Q. Okay. So I didn't get you off the narrative too	3	
4		4	
5			
6		6	
7		1 7	
8	Q. Then why don't you tell us what happened after	8	
9		9	
10	A. After the counseling and after the consents had	10	
11		11	
12	Q. And the ultrasound.	12	
13	A. And the ultrasound, yes, she and her husband were	13	
14		14	
15		15	
16	A of cervical preparation.	16	
17	Q. Okay. The ultrasound evaluation you said was done	17	
18	the first day?	18	
19	A. Uh-huh, yes.	19	Q. Right.
20	Q. Is that I see an ultrasound evaluation dated	20	A. And induction is done in the third trimester,
21	5-10-11 in the medical records here. I believe that's a few	21	
22	pages again, my Bate stamps don't seem to be showing a	p 22	
23	here.	23	Q. Okay. And so is this your handwriting on this
24	 If you show me the page can I see yes. 	24	page when you fill in some of the some of the blanks?
25	MR. GOLDBERG: Do you mind? Twenty.	25	A. My handwriting is yes, partly. Would you like
-		_	
	Page 3	19	Page 41
1	MR. RUBIN: Bate stamp -20. Thank you.	1	me to point out which is my handwriting?
2	MR. GOLDBERG: I think it's -20.	2	Q. Yes. Thank you.
3	A. Yes.	3	A. Where it says, "Present: Sonogram," and it says,
4	Q. If we could just step back from -20 to review wha	t 4	"FI," right above it
5	would be -18 and -19.	5	Q. Uh-huh.
6	A. Yes.	6	A "35 week by known conception."
7	Q. These are also part of the medical records for	7	Q. Okay.
8	that patient?	8	A. That's my handwriting. Then Doctor's notes.
9	A. Yes.	9	Q. Okay. And at the bottom we have Doctor's Orders
10	Q. And the records that we're going through, did you	10	on this page, correct?
11	did you provide these medical records to the Medical	11	A. Yes.
12	Board yourself, do you recall?	12	Q. Okay. And is there do these reflect what was
14	A. Did I personally provide them? Q. Yes.	13	administered to the patient on the 10th at least in part?
15		14	A. When you you mean the Doxycycline, Oxycodone?
16	A. Me, Shelly Sella, hand them to the Medical Board?	15	These are medications that were given to her
17	Q. Or mailed them or have anything to do with what was provided to the Medical Record in terms of medical	16	Q. Okay.
	records?	17	A to take.
18 19		18	Q. Okay. And on the next page this is part of the
20	A. I didn't personally make the copies. Is that your question, did I make the copies and put them in the mail?	19	same form, correct?
21	I'm not following you.	20	A. Yes. Which is Counseling and Medical Record for an
22	Q. Okay. Well, did you? I mean, did you	22	Induction, a third trimester abortion?
23	A. No, I did not.	23	A. Correct.
24	Q. Okay. Did you see what was given to the Medical	24	
25	Board from your office with regard to medical records?	25	Q. And you have your signature on the bottom,
23	Pour rivin your office with regard to medical records?	125	correct?
		do a deservação de la composição de la c	11 (Pages 38 to 41

		T	
1	A. Yes.	1	Pa fair spectrum of reaction of emotional states of these
2	Q. Okay. Did you I see up at the top of the page		women?
3	here, it says Pre-op Orders for Day of Surgery. Were these	2	
		3	A. Yes.
4	followed?	4	Q. Is this this patient, did she present in some
5	A. For this patient?	5	way that was beyond well, let me ask the question ag
6	Q. Yes.	6	You would expect a woman seeking this kind of procedu
7	A. No.	7	would be in a — would be effected by it emotionally,
8	Q. Okay. Why not?	8	correct?
9	A. This was not surgery.	9	A. Yes.
10	Q. Okay. So are you saying that an induction, third	10	Q. You'd expect any woman going through this to be
11	trimester termination is not surgery?	11	least somewhat distraught, correct?
12	A. Correct.	12	A. Yes.
13	Q. Okay. How would you characterize it then if it's	13	Q. Is there anything with this patient, especially as
14	not surgery?	14	is reflected in these records, where you saw something t
15	A. I would characterize it as cervical preparation	15	was beyond what you typically see with a distraught pal
16	and then induction.	16	seeking an abortion?
17	Q. Step back and let me ask you a question generally	17	A. I would say that she was on the more distraught,
18	about medical records. A lot of medical records are like	18	anxious, tearful spectrum of third trimester patients who
19	this one, I suppose, where you have some preprinted part of	19	already are in a very desperate state of mind.
20	a form, and then you divert with what's actually what	20	Q. Okay. Now, I think if I'm reading this, it says
21	actually occurred from what was printed on the form, right?	21	and I'll read this into the record. It says here, this
22	A. Yes.	22	is the last paragraph, "Based on my evaluation of the
23	Q. Do you ever make a notation as to the preprinted	23	patient and taking into account her age and her family
24	part that was not followed, that it was not followed? Do	24	situation, it is my professional opinion that being forced
25		1	
23	you make a notation that it was not followed or cross it out	23	to continue the pregnancy will cause substantial and
			_
4	Page 43	١,	Par level week have to been by significant health have weekel health
1	ever in your medical records?	1	irreversible harm to her physical health, her mental heal
2	A. I have done that in the past.	2	her family health, her safety and well-being." This is
3	Q. Did you do that you didn't do that here though,	3	this is your statement, correct?
4	did you?	4	A. Yes.
5	A. I didn't do that, and I don't routinely do that	5	Q. When did you type that up?
6	for inductions.	6	A. May 10th, 2011.
7	Q. Okay. So let's go I believe we have the next	7	Q. This isn't a preprinted form, is it?
8	page in the record that I see here is a after the	8	A. No.
9	ultrasound on the 10th is a typed page signed by you dated	9	Q. I don't see in this any reflection that there was
10	May 10th, 2011. It reads, "Time of interview: 20 minutes."	10	any kind of suicidal ideation. Am I missing something in
11	And patient name is blanked out. Is this part of you've	11	there?
12	seen this before, correct?	12	A. No.
13	A. Yes.	13	Q. And when you say you used the term,
14	Q. Okay. Can you describe what this report is?	14	"Substantial irreversible harm," are you applying that
15	A. This is this is a narrative of the patient's	15	phrase to everything that comes after, "Separately?" In
16	situation and why she came to the clinic and why she	16	other words, would there be substantial and irreversible
17	requested an abortion.	17	harm to her mental health, substantial and irreversible h
18	Q. And can you describe how she how this patient	18	to her physical health, separately to her family health,
19	presented in terms of her mental state?	19	again, substantial and irreversible harm to her safety and
20	A. She was extremely distraught, upset.	20	well-being?
21	Q. Can you put it in the context now, you've	21	A. Yes.
	fair to say, you've counseled you've counseled many	22	Q. So it applies equally to all those different types
22		23	of aspects of health?
	women, thousands, with pregnancy terminations, right?		
23	women, thousands, with pregnancy terminations, right? A Yes	24	A I don't know that I would say it applies equally
22 23 24 25	A. Yes. Q. You've seen a lot of I guess, have you seen a	24 25	A. I don't know that I would say it applies equally, but I would say that as I wrote, that it would cause

1	Page 46		Page 48
-	substantial and irreversible harm.	1	Q. Let me make one ask you one question here. It
2	Q. And was this particular language that you used	2	says here the time for the Digoxin was 13:45. Are you
3	here, was this motivated by any understanding that you may	3	saying the Lidocaine and Vasopressin was administered after
4	have or may have had with with what the laws of New	4	Digoxin?
5	Mexico are?	5	A. No, that's incorrect.
6	A. Can you repeat that?	6	Q. Okay. So the time here is correct?
7	Q. Your choice of words here	7	A. The Digoxin was administered first.
8	A. Uh-huh.	8	Q. I see. So this medical record is incorrect,
9	Q is it did you chose these words or make any	9	because this has the Digoxin as coming after, does it not?
10	was what you entered here effected at all or motivated at	10	A. Correct. The Digoxin came first.
11	all by some understanding that you may have had with what	11	Q. Around what time was the Digoxin administered?
12	the law of New Mexico is with regard to pregnancy	12	A. Right after the Fentanyl and the Versed.
13	terminations?	13	Q. Okay. So everything these three medications
14	MR. GOLDBERG: I'm going to object to the compound	14	all it says that they all occurred within about a half
15	nature of the question. I think it's a compound the way he	15	hour of each other?
16	stated, is it fair, effected or motivated. As a single	16	A. Yes.
17	answer to that question, it is going to be is going to be	17	Q. All right. Okay. So we had the Fentanyl, the
18	capable of misconstruction.	18	Digoxin. Then after the Lidocaine and Vasopressin what was
19	MR. RUBIN: We'll start with	19	then administered?
20	MR. GOLDBERG: It's a classic compound question.	20	A. The Rosephin, an antibiotic.
21	MR. THOMPSON: We'll start with "effected".	21	Q. Okay.
22	Q. Can you answer the	22	A. And Rhogam.
23	A. Can you repeat the question?	23	Q. And what is Rhogam? What does that serve?
24	Q. I will try. Third time might be the charm, and	24	A. The patient was Rh negative, so she did not have the red cell — red blood cell antigen, and Rhogam is an
25	I'll try to ask you more succinctly. This last paragraph,	25	the red cell red blood cell allugen, and relogant is an
	Pero 47	_	Page 49
_	Page 47	1	
1	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some	1 2	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies.
2	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico	2	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry
2 3	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations?	2 3	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol?
2 3 4	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No.	2	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes.
2 3 4 5	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in	2 3 4	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol?
2 3 4 5 6	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No.	2 3 4 5	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it
2 3 4 5	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page	2 3 4 5 6	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record	2 3 4 5 6 7	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I performed an amniocentesis and a fetal blood draw.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes. MR. THOMPSON: The Fentanyl is a pain
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I performed an amniocentesis and a fetal blood draw. Q. Okay.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes. MR. THOMPSON: The Fentanyl is a pain THE WITNESS: Yes, and Versed is anxiolytic like
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I performed an amniocentesis and a fetal blood draw. Q. Okay. A. I then did an intrafetal injection of Digoxin to stop the heartbeat and effect demise. Q. Okay.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes. MR. THOMPSON: The Fentanyl is a pain THE WITNESS: Yes, and Versed is anxiolytic like Valium.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I performed an amniocentesis and a fetal blood draw. Q. Okay. A. I then did an intrafetal injection of Digoxin to stop the heartbeat and effect demise. Q. Okay. A. This was followed by a paracervical block with	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	antibody given to prevent her from forming antibodies. Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes. MR. THOMPSON: The Fentanyl is a pain THE WITNESS: Yes, and Versed is anxiolytic like Valium. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) Okay. So then I see a notation
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	the words you chose here, was this effected at all by some understanding you may have had with the laws of New Mexico or with regard to pregnancy terminations? A. No. Q. Is it motivated in A. No. Q. Okay. So then the next I see here, next page after that page is something that is a medical record entitled Digoxin Injection and Dilator Insertion? A022 bates. Q022. I should be writing this down, too. Why don't we, beginning with this page, if you could go through exactly what was administered to the patient and when on the 10th? A. Okay. So initially the patient was given Fentanyl and Versed. Following that, her physician had requested that we get samples for testing. So following that, I performed an amniocentesis and a fetal blood draw. Q. Okay. A. I then did an intrafetal injection of Digoxin to stop the heartbeat and effect demise. Q. Okay.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Okay. And then I see the last handwritten entry by you in this chart on Bates -22. Is that Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. And can you tell me what Misoprostol is, what it does and A. Yes, but before I inserted the Misoprostol, I inserted Laminaria. Q. I see. Okay. What would could you explain what that is? A. If you'll notice, I wrote, "Cervix open to #71 prat." I dilated the cervix and inserted Laminaria, which are seaweed sticks that help open the cervix. Q. Was there what was dilation prior was there any dilation prior to inserting the Laminaria? A. I used dilators to open the cervix, and then I inserted the Laminaria. Q. So it started off closed? A. Yes. MR. THOMPSON: The Fentanyl is a pain THE WITNESS: Yes, and Versed is anxiolytic like Valium.

1	A. No, that's incorrect. It's 13:55.	1	Q. And so you administered one at around 1:55, and
1	AL AND THE REPORT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPE	2	then were there any more on the 10th? I don't see any m
2	Q. Ah, okay. So instead of 15:55, it should have	3	medical notes here until we get to something on 5-11. S
3	read 13:55?	-	what else happened on the 10th in terms of what you
4	A, Yes.	4	administered to the patient?
5	Q. So, again, I think I keep interrupting. Why don't	5	A. That was it. She was discharged.
6	you tell us about Misoprostol, what it is, why you used it	6	Q. Okay. Was there any more Misoprostol administe
7	here?	7	to her on the 10th?
8	A. Misoprostol is a prostaglandin pge1, and it's used	8	
9	in this setting as part of cervical preparation.	9	A. No. Q. And then after that sonography report which we
10	Q. What does it what physiologically does it do?	10	briefly discussed, looks like we're on Bate stamp -24; is
11	A. Well, what it does to the cervix is it helps	111	
12	soften the cervix. It helps shorten the cervix.	12	that right? A. Yes,
13	Q. Okay. And it looks like the amount, if I read	13	
14	that correctly, 100 micrograms?	14	Q. And I see here well, let's make sure we've got it right. Are the times for the medications correct as far
15	A. Yes.	15	
16	Q. And the route is per vagina?	16	as you know? Why don't you just double check now.
17	A. Yes.	17	A. No, they are not correct. Q. Okay. Where are they erroneous?
18	Q. Patient respond well. I see an "okay" there?	19	A. It starts with Fentanyl, Versed. That is an 8,
19	A. Uh-huh, yes.	20	08:50, and all the other times are off by an hour.
20	Q. All right. And then I think we have on the next	To the same of	Q. I see. Okay. So wherever I see a 9, then
21	page a sonography report. This would be Bates -23.	21 22	Misoprostol, it should be at 8:15 instead of 9:15?
22	A. Yes.	23	A. Yes.
23	Q. Is this did we look at this already, or is this a second one?	24	Q. Fentanyl is at 10:00. My military time is
24 25	A. It's a second one.	25	lacking.
	Page 51		Pag
1	Q. And why did you conduct a second one?	1	A. No, Fentanyl was at 8:50. That is correct. The
2	A. We do all of our procedures under ultrasound	2	Fentanyl Versed - oh, you mean the subsequent one, the one
3	guidance.	3	on the bottom?
4	Q. Okay.	4	Q. Correct.
5	A. And the ultrasound that is taken, the photo is to	5	A. That's 9:02, yes.
6	confirm and you can't see that because of the quality,	6	Q. That one says 9:00.
7	but it's to confirm that the dilators, the Laminaria are	7	MR. THOMPSON: Just for the record, the first
8	well-placed.	8	Fentanyl is at 8:50 a.m.?
9	Q. Okay.	9	THE WITNESS: Yes, the Lidocalne and Vasopressin,
10	MR. GOLDBERG: Mr. Hearing Officer, if I'm not	10	at 8:52. The Rosephin was at the same time.
11	oldest man in the room, I'm pretty darn close to it.	11	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) So for so for Dr. Bullock's
12	MR. THOMPSON: Take a break?	12	benefit, this would be on Texas time as opposed to Nev
13	MR. GOLDBERG: Yeah.	13	Mexico time?
14	MR. THOMPSON: Okay. We will take a five-minute	14	A. Yes.
15	break.	15	Q. I'll allay the jokes.
16	MR. GOLDBERG: That would be fine for me.	16	MR. GOLDBERG: Can we take another break? No.
17	MR. THOMPSON: It's 10:20. We'll take a break.	17	Q. So Misoprostol here again is 100 micrograms?
18	(Note: Hearing in recess at 10:20 a.m.	18	A. Yes.
19	and reconvened at 10:25 a.m.)	19	Q. Given on at 8:15?
20	MR. THOMPSON: We're back on the record. It's	20	A. That was no, I'm sorry. The incorrect times
	10:25. We're on direct examination of Dr. Sella. Go ahead.	21	were the Lidocaine, Vasopressin and Rosephin. The
	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) I believe where we left off, Dr.	22	Misoprostol is correct. That's at 9:15. The Fentanyl is
21	Quality and	100	incorrect.
21 22		23	
21 22 23 24	Sella, you were discussing Misoprostol and how it softens and shortens the cervix?	24	Q. Okay. So you're familiar with what I saw on

1	D	- 1	
1 1	Page 5		Pag
2		1	c story area
3		2	, and the second for self-field of 2173 2116
4		3	and a such to lici Hotels
5		4	THE SHALL SHALL
6	a manufacture trial langua to baces	5	a the state of the
7		6	
8		7	de verment to this be bibble
9		8	
	the state with the state of the	9	C
10		10	The second little for the second little for the second little
12	A. Oh, correct. Yes.	11	
	C Indicated bonne i recenti bo there was no	12	
13	Pitocin given at any time up until now, correct?	13	to an a substitute me
	A. Correct.	14	7.7
15	Q. So back to 5-11. The Misoprostol administered to	1	Q is that referring to the same dosage?
16	the patient at 9:15	16	A. Yes.
	A. Yes.	17	Q. Okay. So we had who made that entry?
18	Q. And what else happened on that date in terms of	18	 That was a nurse at the clinic.
19	the procedure?	19	Q. And what was her name?
20	A. An ultrasound was done.	20	 She doesn't work there any more, so KK.
21	Q. Okay.	21	Q. I withdraw the question. It's okay. I withdraw
22	A. And it confirmed fetal demise.	22	the question. Okay. So we have the patient going back to
23	Q. Is that on the very next page?	23	the hotel on 5-11?
24	A. Oh, the ultrasound?	24	A. Yes.
25	Q. Yes.	25	Q. What is your next contact with this patient?
1 2 3	A. Yes.Q. Okay.A. The Laminaria were removed. The cervix was open.	1 2 3	A. Bates -026 she returned to the clinic at about 5:00 p.m. Q. Okay. We're on -26. Is that the page entitled
4	More Laminaria were inserted. Misoprostol was placed.	4	Dilator Insertion?
5	Q. Okay. Was this the Misoprostol at 8 9:15?	5	A. Yes.
6	A. Correct.	6	Q. Okay. So when did she return to the clinic, abo
7	Q. All right.	7	5:00?
8	A. And she was instructed to take Misoprostol, 100	8	A. Yeah, 5:00ish.
9	micrograms buccally, and that is between the cheek and the	9	Q. 5:00ish. Okay.
	jaw, at 3:00 p.m.	10	Yeah. 4:50 is when she actually first came in.
11	Q. Okay. And that's in your handwritten notes here?	11	The Laminaria were removed.
12	I see, "100 mcy MSP to take at 3:00 p.m. hold for one hour."	12	Q. Okay.
13	A. Well, no, that's not my handwriting.	13	A. Her cervix had not changed. AROM means artificial
14	Q. Oh.	14	rupture of membrane with insertion is what is written. The
15	A. Reinsert at 16:30, so that was also instructions	15	bag of water broke as I was inserting the next set of
16 1	for her to come back in the afternoon to put in more	16	Laminaria.
	Laminaria. "MSP, Misoprostol, 100 micrograms mcg at 15:00."	17	Q. And that's the handwritten notes you're referring
	The nurse or the RN explained that 100 micrograms		to on this page
	Misoprostol to take at 3:00 p.m., hold for one hour.	19	A. Yes.
20	Q. Okay. So at 3:00 p.m. was Misoprostol	20	Q 26? Okay. Do you know if she took the 3:00
21 a	administered to the patient?		o'clock dosage of Misoprostol?
22	A. She administered it herself.	22	A. She did.
23	Q. Okay. And where did she do that?	23	Q. All right. What else does it say here in these
24	A. She went back to the hotel at 9:45. She was		notes?
25 d	lischarged from the clinic.	25	A. It says, continue MSP, Misoprostol, 100

1	Page 58	1	Page
1	micrograms, Q6 hours, RTC, round the clock. Next does at	1	Q. Okay. So then in the notes is there any mention
2	21:00. Reinsert in a.m.	2	of Misoprostol?
3	Q. Okay. By "reinsert" do you mean the Laminaria?	3	A. Yeah, excuse me.
4	Yes, I was planning another day of Laminaria.	4	Q. Sure. Any time you want a drink, please. I'll do
5	Q. Okay. So that's on 5-11, and the next page has a	5	the same.
6	Sonography Report reflecting at 5:30 on 5-11; is that right?	6	A. Yes, as I said, the instructions were for her to
7	A. Correct.	7	continue the Misoprostol every six hours round the clock,
8	Q. And what did you conduct that report for?	8	the next dose at 9:00 p.m.
9	 A. That — again, that is routinely done. Whenever 	9	Q. And was that dosage was there a dose
10	we insert Laminaria, the insertion is done under a	10	administered at 9:00 o'clock?
11	continuous ultrasound guidance. The photo confirms that the	11	A. No, there was not.
12	dilators were correctly placed.	12	Q. Okay. Is there any notation to that effect?
13	Q. All right. Okay. So she's back in the clinic at	13	A. Yes, there is.
14	4:50. When is the next I see there's a page here. I	14	Q. Where is that?
15	believe it's Bate stamped -28.	15	A. On Bates -030,
16	A. Yes.	16	Q. Thirty. Okay.
17	Q. Who's notes are those?	17	 When the patient came into the clinic, the first
18	A. Those are the clinic administrator's, Joan	18	note says, "At 22:53, patient presented for increased UCs,"
19	Garbagni.	19	so increased contractions. "Last Misoprostol at 15:00."
20	Q. And then page -29	20	Q. I see. That was the one she took in the motel?
21	A. Yes.	21	A. Correct.
22	Q is this your handwriting?	22	Q. So with regard to the Misoprostol, why was the
23	A. Yes.	23	11:00 o'clock the 9:00 o'clock dose not given? I'm
24	Q. And this reflects some of the particulars for this	24	sure why.
25	patient. Well, why don't you describe what the	25	A. Uh-huh. So the question is why didn't she take
Book Broom	Page 59		Page
1	Post-Delivery Checklist is?	1	it? Because she was given several pills. It's actually a
2	A. This is something that we offer to all fetal	2	pill that's broken in half, and she was instructed to take
	The first to controlling that the one to controll		
3	indication natients where there's something very wrong with		
3	indication patients where there's something very wrong with	3	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also
4	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It	3	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should
4 5	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're	3 4 5	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did
4 5 6	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's	3 4 5 6	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not she did not take it, because she was having
4 5 6 7	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We	3 4 5 6 7	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose.
4 5 6 7 8	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for	3 4 5 6 7 8	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your on Ba
4 5 6 7 8	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your on Ba stamp -30 where you note the contractions?
4 5 6 7 8 9	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient
4 5 6 7 8 9	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase —
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 112 13	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th? A. Correct.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp –30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No. MR. RUBIN: Pardon me?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th? A. Correct. Q. Let's flip back to Bate stamp, let's see, -26. So	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp –30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No. MR. RUBIN: Pardon me? MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th? A. Correct. Q. Let's flip back to Bate stamp, let's see, -26. So we have I see here in the notes I don't see any more	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No. MR. RUBIN: Pardon me? MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. MR. RUBIN: No. Thank goodness.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th? A. Correct. Q. Let's flip back to Bate stamp, let's see, -26. So we have I see here in the notes I don't see any more Misoprostol being administered in the table at the top of	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No. MR. RUBIN: Pardon me? MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. MR. RUBIN: No. Thank goodness. A. And the S just didn't get copied.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the baby, and we go over this list with patients. It before their delivery, we talk about whether they're interested in viewing the baby, a blessing, all what's written down here, footprints or handprints, photos. We discuss whether they want ashes or making arrangements for burial, medical photos. So this is a conversation that we have before the day of delivery. Q. Okay. So this conversation you had with her on the 11th? A. I'm not sure what day that was. Q. Okay. So this is A. But typically, typically that conversation happens on day two. Q. Okay. So this is undated, but we would expect that you would expect that it would have occurred on the 11th? A. Correct. Q. Let's flip back to Bate stamp, let's see, -26. So we have I see here in the notes I don't see any more	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	it every six hours round the clock. However, she was also instructed, as all patients are instructed, that she should not take the pill if she's having contractions. So she did not — she did not take it, because she was having contractions. She did not take the 9:00 o'clock dose. Q. Okay. Can you point out where in your — on Bastamp -30 where you note the contractions? A. Patient — the first — my first line, "Patient presented for" — you see the arrow going up? Q. Yes. A. So increase — that's increase — Q. Increase. A. — UCs. Q. That says UC after the arrow? A. Yes. MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. THE WITNESS: No. MR. RUBIN: Pardon me? MR. GOLDBERG: It's not Uniform Commercial Code. MR. RUBIN: No. Thank goodness.

1	Page 62 right-hand column, this is a narrative of what happened?		Page hours to help prepare the cervix, so that was to soften, to
2	A. Yes.	2	
3	Q. Would you be so kind as to translate that for lack	3	augment labor. But then she came into the clinic with
4	of a better word.	4	contractions aiready, so the plan changed. The plan was no
5	A. Into English?	5	longer, "Tomorrow let's put in more Laminaria." Here she's
6	Q. Yes. Thank you.	6	already in labor, so the plan is moving toward delivery.
7	A. Okay. So, again, she came in in the middle of the	7	
8	night with contractions, and the last Misoprostol she had	1	Q. Okay. So then I see an entry for Versed around the same time as the dose of Misoprostol?
-	taken was at 3:00 p.m. At 23:17, so that's 11:17 p.m, I had	8	
9		9	A. Yes.
	removed the Laminaria. The cervix was 5 centimeters, 70	10	
11	percent. UCs, so uterine contractions, were every four to five minutes.	11	would be your notes on the right-hand side as the low d
		12	Pitocen beginning?
13	Q. Okay,	13	A. Yes.
14	A. Will augment with the Misoprostol, 100 micrograms,	14	Q. I see 10 units?
15	Q one to two hours, will titrate dose.	15	A. Yes.
16	Q. Okay. So does that reflect that any Misoprostol	16	Q. And 10 units per 1,000?
17	was given after the contractions on the 11th?	17	A. Yes.
18	A. Misoprostol was given at 23 so on the	18	Q. And what unit is that, CCs?
19	right-hand side is the notes. On the left-hand side are the	19	A. Boy, I don't know how many units are in a CC, but
20	medications on -030.	20	there's a you know, there is a calculation. I don't know
21	Q. So MSP in the right-hand or the left-hand side	21	that exact number.
22	is Misoprostol?	22	Q. Okay. So it's what does
23	A. Yes.	23	A. It might be one I don't know. I'm not sure.
24 25	Q. And 100 micrograms were given at 23:18 on the 11th, and then again at 12:24, 00:24 military time	2 4 25	Q. Did you write these did you make these entries yourself?
-	Page 63		Pag
1	A. Yes.	1	A. The Pitocin, yes, I did.
~			
2	Q on the 12th?	2	Q. Okay. So you're telling me and I understand,
3	Q on the 12th? A. Yes.	2	
	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe	1	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote.
3 4 5	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?"	3	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I
3 4 5 6	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back.	3 4	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit.
3 4 5	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure.	3 4	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know.
3 4 5 6 7 8	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25	3 4 5 6 7 8	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat	3 4 5 6 7 8	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin."	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point,	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 111 112 13 14	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe In the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see, So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions? A. Correct.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes. Q patient threw up Misoprostol?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions? A. Correct. Q. So here there are contractions, but you're	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes. Q patient threw up Misoprostol? A. Yes.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions? A. Correct. Q. So here there are contractions, but you're administering Misoprostol.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes. Q patient threw up Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. So that's after the first Pitocen after the
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 120	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions? A. Correct. Q. So here there are contractions, but you're administering Misoprostol. A. Correct.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes. Q patient threw up Misoprostol? A. Yes. Q. So that's after the first Pitocen after the drip was started?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. Yes. Q. Okay. So we're back here. It says here I believe in the right-hand column, "Begin low dose Pitocin?" A. Let me just go back. Q. Sure. A. Because there's a line that's missing. At 00:25 it says, "CX," that's cervix, "minimal change." So her cervix had not changed. "Repeat Misoprostol, MSP. Repeat Misoprostol/begin low dose Pitocin." Q. Okay. So there were contractions at this point, but there was no change in the dilation of her cervix? A. Correct. Q. Okay. Now, I thought your testimony earlier, and correct me if I'm wrong, a few minutes ago was that she was told not to take Misoprostol if there were contractions? A. Correct. Q. So here there are contractions, but you're administering Misoprostol. A. Correct. Q. Okay. Why the difference?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	because I write things down where I don't know what the he I wrote. A. No, no. I know what I wrote. What I what I don't know the answer to is how many CCs equals a unit. That's what I don't know. Q. I see. So what is the 1,000 unit? A. It's NA, so an IV was started, and a solution of 1,000 CCs was given. Ten units of Pitocin were placed in the 1,000 CCs. Now, I cannot tell you how many CCs what the how many CCs equals one unit. I don't know that offhand. It says on the bottle. Q. Okay. I understand. Okay. So then let's go let's pick up the narrative here on the right-hand side then. I believe it says here at 00:52 A. Yes. Q patient threw up Misoprosto!? A. Yes. Q. So that's after the first Pitocen after the drip was started? A. Yes.

	Page 66		Page 68	*****
1	also, the contraction pattern was unchanged. So she wasn't	1	happened overnight?	20.00
	tolerating the Misoprostol. The contraction pattern hadn't	2	Q. No, it sounds like after she threw it up, the plan	大きなる
3	changed. The cervix was not changing. It was time to try	3	was she would rest overnight?	M 4CADACS
4	something else.	4	A. Correct.	Charles of the
5	Q. Okay. So what was what was the something else	5	Q. And where would where would she rest?	35.4040
6	that was tried and when was it tried?	6	A. At the clinic in the gurney room.	Sec.
7	A. So what I wrote here was, "Will switch to	7	Q. Okay. So she's in the gurney room, and then I see	4.3 16.0
8	therapeutic rest with Versed, Fentanyl, one and one, Q one	8	here, looks like I have a notation, "Fentanyl and Versed."	- 10-Cm
9	hour PRN," and I'll explain that dosing. "Continue low dose	9	Can you tell me what time that is? It look like 1:05, or is	Section Con-
10	Pitocin overnight. Reassess in a.m."	10	that	100
11	Q. Okay. "In a.m.," that would be the following day?	11	A. Well, she she got Fentanyl and Versed overnight	A SHE HALL
	A. Yes, on May 12th.	12	almost continuously.	THE PERSON
12 13	MR. GOLDBERG: That would be the 12th?	13	Q. Okay,	Diegona
	THE WITNESS: Yes.	14	A. Fifty micrograms of Fentanyl and a milligram of	100000
14	MR. GOLDBERG: We're already in May 12th?	15	Versed. She got it at 11:00 p.m. Then at 1:18 she got	a charles
15	THE WITNESS: Yes, but what I'm "a.m." meaning	16	Fentanyl. All those times are just overnight medications to	- Been
16	the start of the usual day, 7:00 in the morning. In other	17	help her sleep.	40.00
17	words, sleep over night.	18	Q. I see. So she was in the gurney room receiving	
		19	these IVs?	
19	Q. Okay. A. In the morning, even though it was already	20	A. Correct.	
20	morning, but in the metaphorical morning, 7:00, 8:00, we'll	21	Q. And looks like the next entry on the left-hand	
21	reassess and see where she's at.	22	side that doesn't involve Fentanyl or Versed is at 7:30?	11.14
22 23	Q. Okay. So that would have been on the 13th would	23	A. Correct.	
	be the plan?	24	Q. And what is LR?	1
24 25	A. No, no, no, no. I'm sorry. It was about midnight	25	A. Lactated ringer, a certain IV solution.	
23	A. Mo, No, No, No. 1 moonly. It was about many.			
	Page 67		Page 69	
4	that she threw up the Misoprostol, and she was on — and I	1	Q. Okay. What is that for?	
1	had already started the low dose Pitocin. The plan was that	2	A. She when she woke up and I checked her at 7:12,	-
2	overnight she would get the low dose Pitocin and rest with	3	I then increased the Pitocin to 60 units, but it was placed	
3	the Fentanyl and Versed. So she would basically sleep,	4	in 1,000 CCs of an IV solution, and that was LR.	
4	maintain the Pitocin. In the morning, 7:00 a.m	5	Q. Okay. And going back to the right-hand side, can	-
5 6	MR. THOMPSON: Sunday morning.	6	you read me your notes regarding the Pitocin? I think it	-
7	THE WITNESS: Yes.	7	says, "Excellent progress?"	
8	MR. THOMPSON: So when you're saying "overnight",	8	A. Yes.	
9	you mean the same day's sleeping period?	9	Q. And then above that you have a dilation of seven	-
10	THE WITNESS: Correct. Yes.	10	centimeters?	-
11	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) So she threw it up the night of	11	A. Yes.	-
12	the 11th, and the plan was on the morning of the 12th?	12	Q. And have there been any contractions then?	-
13	A. Well, she threw it actually right at	13	A. There were mild contractions.	-
14	MR. GOLDBERG: For the record, she threw it up at	14	Q. Is that noted in the records here?	-
15	about ten minutes of 1:00 on the morning of the 12th. She	15	A. No, no.	-
16	got it at about 12:25, and about 25 minutes later she threw	16	Q. But there were mild contractions?	-
17	it up. That's what the document says.	17	A. Yes.	-
18	THE WITNESS: Yeah, she may have thrown it up	18	Q. Okay. Is that something you normally should	-
19	earlier.	19	you think you should have noted?	-
TA	MR. RUBIN: Thank you for your testimony.	20	 No. That's expected with the therapeutic rest. 	-
20		21	Q. Okay. So why was the Pitocin just am I	-
20	A 1'm laughing just that we're discussing ner		the Ditagin from 10	ı
21	A. I'm laughing just that we're discussing her	22	characterizing by saying you ramped up the Pitoch from 10	1
21 22	throwing up, but she threw up within that time period. I	22 23	characterizing by saying you ramped up the Pitocin from 10 to 60?	-
21 22 23	throwing up, but she threw up within that time period. I didn't write the note the second that she threw up, but	23		
21 22	throwing up, but she threw up within that time period. I		to 60?	

	Page 70		Page 72
1	A. She had progressed when she first came in at	1	room?
2	11:00 p.m., she was five centimeters. Eight hours later she	2	 A. Correct. It's called a procedure room, but yes.
3	was seven centimeters. In other words, that took a long	3	Q. Procedure?
4	time to progress two centimeters. At the time that I	4	A. Yes.
5	checked her, her contractions, she still was not in what I	5	Q. Okay. And that's when you made the first you
6	would call adequate labor.	6	had the first observation that this might that you should
7	Q. Okay.	7	discontinue at Pitocin, and what what were you what
8	A. And I increased the Pitocin to facilitate	8	were you thinking at that point about what was happening
9	delivery.	9	with this procedure?
10	Q. I see. Let just do a little summary here. At	10	 A. What I was thinking at that point was that it
11	what point were you I think, if I can read this correctly	11	wasn't happening; that I would have expected her to deliver
12	and if I understand your testimony, there was a point at	12	by this point. So I brought her to the procedure room to
13	which you had began the Pitocin and you administered	13	see to assess if I could do a cranial decompression; in
14	Misoprostol at about the same time; is that right?	14	other words, to collapse the head and facilitate the
15	A. Initially, yes.	15	delivery.
16	Q. Okay. And it was then and that's at 12:24,	16	Q. Okay. So what prompted you to bring her into the
17	Misoprostol. 12:25 you start the Pitocin. That's not the	17	procedure room wasn't anything that she did or said?
18	and when was the Misoprostol thrown up?	18	A. No.
19	A. The note is 00:52.	19	Q. And that's when you found the transverse lie, you
20	Q. Okay. So shortly after she got the Misoprostol	20	couldn't see the head anymore, and you discontinued the
21	and the Pitocin, she then threw up the Misoprostol?	21	Pitocin?
22	A. Correct.	22	A. Correct.
23	Q. Okay. And fair to say there was no more	23	Q. Okay. If we could flip back to page Bate stamp
24	Misoprostol given after that?	24	-30.
25	A. Correct.	25	A. Yes.
		-	
	Page 71		Page 7
1	Q. Let's look at Bate stamp -31.	1	Q. Let me let me read what you what I think
2	A. Yes.	2	you've written here at the last five or six lines or so on
3	Q. What's that?	3	the right-hand column, Bate stamp -30, "1:15, patient
4	A. Those are medications.	4	brought to procedure room for examination of cervix."
4 5	Q. Okay. And is this	5	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and
	Q. Okay. And is thisA. It's a continuation of the medications on -30.	5	 A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head.
5	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, 	5 6 7	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound"
5 6	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and 	5 6 7 8	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie."
5 6 7	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? 	5 6 7 8 9	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes.
5 6 7 8 9	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. 	5 6 7 8 9	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse
5 6 7 8 9	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that?	5 6 7 8 9 10	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is?
5 6 7 8 9 10	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation?	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean?
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I could see that the fetus was now sideways, transverse.	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule out "uterine rupture?"
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I could see that the fetus was now sideways, transverse.	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule out "uterine rupture?" A. Correct.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I could see that the fetus was now sideways, transverse. Q. Okay. What prompted you to bring her into the I guess there's a gurney room? A. Yes.	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule out "uterine rupture?" A. Correct. Q. "Discontinue Pitocin. Transfer to UNM."
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I could see that the fetus was now sideways, transverse. Q. Okay. What prompted you to bring her into the I guess there's a gurney room?	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule out "uterine rupture?" A. Correct. Q. "Discontinue Pitocin. Transfer to UNM." A. Yes.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Okay. And is this A. It's a continuation of the medications on -30. Q. Okay. And so I see oxygen, Versed, Versed, Versed, Fentanyl, Lidocaine, Versed, Fentanyl, oxygen, and then what is the one at 13:17? A. DC Pitocin, so discontinued Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why was that? A. At that point I suspected uterine rupture, and I turned off the Pitocin. Q. Okay. And why did you suspect uterine rupture? What lead you to that situation? A. When I checked her, I noticed that I could no longer feel the head, which I had been feeling before, and I check with an ultrasound, which we have in the room, and I could see that the fetus was now sideways, transverse. Q. Okay. What prompted you to bring her into the I guess there's a gurney room? A. Yes.	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. No, no, no, I'm sorry, vertex vertices and vertex no longer palpable, and that's the head. Q. Okay. Got it. And then it says, "Ultrasound indicates now a transverse lie." A. Yes. Q. And just describe for the record what a transverse lie is? A. It's the baby's sideways. Q. And you would expect the baby in what position if it was A. It was head down. You would expect it head down. Q. Right. And then I see here an A and P with a circle on it. What does that mean? A. Assessment plan. Q. "The assessment plan is then to RO" means rule out "uterine rupture?" A. Correct. Q. "Discontinue Pitocin. Transfer to UNM."

	Page 78		Page
1	let's see102 has a date of 13:50 or time of 13:50.	1	Q. Okay. And then patient's MD, and I see is that
2	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) Can you turn to Bate stamp -100	2	a "5m" after that?
3	for me? I don't believe that's that particular page is	3	A. Yes, I don't know what that means. It may be five
4	in the copy of the medical records that I have as my Exhibit	4	minutes that got cut off.
5	1. It is in their Exhibit 8.	5	Q. Okay. On 5-21 the one-hour visit with the patient
6	A. Thirteen – I'm sorry. Okay. Go ahead.	6	and the family, correct?
7	Q. I believe it's so are you on Bate stamp -100?	7	A. Yes.
8	A. Yes.	8	Q. How did that can you give your impressions as
9	Q. I see here this is a this is a form printed by	9	to what happened at that time? Is there some discussions
10	UNM UNM Hospitals?	10	counseling? What was what was your role at that time?
11	A, Yes,	11	A. My role was to be with them. This was a
12	Q. Okay. I see an arrival time. What does that	12	complication. I was very concerned, and I wanted to be
13	arrival time say?	13	there with them.
14	A. 13:39.	14	Q. Okay. 5-13, again, "One-hour visit with patient's
15	Q. 13:39. Did you provide her with some Oxycodone?	15	mother. The patient was asleep."
16	Under Meds, is that	16	A. Yes.
17	A. Well, I don't know that she was provided — maybe	17	Q. And then a call to her doctor, five minutes.
18	she brought that with her. I don't know what that refers	18	A. Uh-huh, yes.
19	to.	19	Q. Okay. Saturday the 14th, same thing, another
20	Q. So 13:39 is, as far as you know, is that is	20	one-hour visit with patient and mother. "Patient
21	that consistent with what your impression was as to when she	21	discharged."
22	arrived there?	22	A. Yes.
23	A. I couldn't say.	23	Q. All right. On the next page here we have an
24	Q. Okay. At least we have in your notes the time	24	operative note here, correct?
	that she we have 1:15 is when you examined her, correct?	25	A. Yes.
-	Page 79	\vdash	Page
1	A. Correct.	1	Q. Okay. Was this is this page why is this
2	Q. So this would be one about if my math's pretty	2	included in the medical records for this case, this patien
3	good, about a half hour later?	3	A. Well, this is just a form that we would have
4	A. Yes. A bit less.	4	filled out had she delivered.
5	Q. Okay. Approximately a half hour?	5	Q. Okay. And so you wrote over it here, "Transfer to
6	A. Twenty-four minutes, whatever it is.	6	UNM, rule out uterine rupture," correct?
7	Q. Okay. Let's proceed. I think we have Bate stamp	7	A. Yes.
8	page -34, Progress Notes. Are you on that?	8	Q. So that was to indicate that this formally wasn't
9	A. One moment. Yes.	9	relevant?
10	Q. And is this your handwriting?	10	 It was to indicate that she was transferred.
11	A. Yes, it is.	11	Q. Right. So this information was not relevant to
12	Q. Does this contain any information in addition to	12	your medical records?
13	what we've already covered?	13	A. Correct.
14	A. No.	14	Q. Okay. Let's see. We are on Bate stamp if you
15	Q. Okay. All right. Same with the next page?	15	could turn to the letter dated May 15th. I believe it's tv
16	A. Well, it talks about my visits to the hospital,	16	pages.
17	conversations I had.	17	A. What number? Oh, okay, I see.
18	Q. Okay. So it says here, if I'm reading this	18	Q. I'm trying to figure that it out myself.
19	correctly, "Thursday" and this is Bate stamp -35,	19	MR. GOLDBERG: Thirty-eight.
20	"Thursday, 5-12, transferred to UNM." What does that say?	20	A. And -39.
	A. Presumed.	21	Q. Thirty-nine?
21	Q. "Presumed uterine rupture." You made a telephone	22	A. Yes.
21		23	Q. Did you write this letter?
22 23		120	
22	call to a Dr. V. Rosenberg. Is that the patient's doctor back east?	24	A. I did.

	Page 82		Page 8
1	repaired and blood loss was within normal limits?"	1	MR. RUBIN: No, I made two copies.
2	A. Yes.	2	MR. GOLDBERG: Excellent. Thank you very much.
3	Q. And what did you rely on for that assessment?	3	MR, RUBIN: Okay. Everyone has a copy.
4	A. That was the report that I had gotten.	4	MS. NOWARA: And can I
5	Q. From whom?	5	MR. GOLDBERG: I lied to you.
6	A. From one of the physicians. I don't remember	6	MS. NOWARA: Can I say just for the record that I
1772	which.	7	think
7		8	MR. GOLDBERG: I lied to you. It's not this one.
8	Q. Was it a written report?	9	MR. RUBIN: You need to put that on the record,
9	A. No.	10	your prevarication.
10	Q. Is there any indication here as to the any	11	MR. GOLDBERG: I think it is on the record,
11	permanent damage to the patient?	12	because as I say, I lied to you. I do have it.
12	A. No.	13	MR. RUBIN: All right. Okay. Is everyone where I
13	Q. Okay. So there's nothing either way?	14	am?
14	A. Correct.	15	MR. THOMPSON: Do we have counsel, you have
15	Q. Is one of the complications of uterine rupture	16	question?
16	possible infertility in the future?	17	MS. NOWARA: No.
17	A. Not that I'm aware of.	18	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) Okay. Thank you, Dr. Sella.
18	Q. Does uterine rupture effect a woman's ability to	19	A. Yes.
19	deliver a full-term baby in the future in future	20	Q. Okay. Here we are again now.
20	conceptions?	21	A. Yes.
21	A. That depends on the rupture, the size of the	22	Q. You have in front of you something titled
22	rupture and the repair. It can effect her well, it	23	caption in the upper left-hand corner is an Operation
23	certainly would require her to have a C-section in the	24	Report?
24	future.	25	A. Yes.
25	Q. Okay.	25	A, 165.
	Dage 92		
	Page 83		Page
1	A, And it can effect her ability to go completely to	1	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have
1 2		2	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this?
	A, And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay.		Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have.
2	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term.	2	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it?
2 3	A, And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay.	2	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know
2 3 4	 A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. 	2 3 4 5 6	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was.
2 3 4 5	 A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. 	2 3 4 5 6 7	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago,
2 3 4 5 6	 A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct?
2 3 4 5 6 7	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to when the control of the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.)	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Okay. And let's — have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the — or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I — I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's well, I can't answer that. I'm
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp — are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as Prosecution's Exhibit 1, I believe it's an Operative Report	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's well, I can't answer that. I'm not allowed to.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as Prosecution's Exhibit 1, I believe it's an Operative Report are you there, Mr. Goldberg?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. Okay. And let's — have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the — or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I — I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's — well, I can't answer that. I'm not allowed to. A. Okay. That's what I have thought always, so —
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as Prosecution's Exhibit 1, I believe it's an Operative Report are you there, Mr. Goldberg? MR. GOLDBERG: This is my last.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to wire you thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's well, I can't answer that. I'm not allowed to.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as Prosecution's Exhibit 1, I believe it's an Operative Report are you there, Mr. Goldberg? MR. GOLDBERG: This is my last. MR. RUBIN: That's your last page?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's well, I can't answer that. I'm not allowed to. A. Okay. That's what I have thought always, so
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. And it can effect her ability to go completely to full term. Q. Okay. A. The uterus is weaker as it is after one C-section. MR. RUBIN: Okay. I think we're almost done, Dr. Sella. Appreciate your patience. If I could just have a moment, Mr. Hearing Officer, I'm looking for a page I thought I had. MR. GOLDBERG: Maybe I can help you. MR. RUBIN: I'm looking for Bate stamp are we off the record. MR. THOMPSON: Let's go off the record. (Note: Hearing in recess at 11:06 a.m. and reconvened at 11:11 a.m.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record, time of 11:10. Direction examination of Dr. Sella. You may proceed. Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) If you could look at the very last page of the medical records I've included as Prosecution's Exhibit 1, I believe it's an Operative Report are you there, Mr. Goldberg? MR. GOLDBERG: This is my last.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Okay. And let's have you seen this page? Have you seen this? A. Yes, I have. Q. When did you first see it? A. When we got the records from UNM. I don't know when that was. Q. And you recall meeting with me several weeks ago, correct? A. Yes. Q. And do you remember making a statement as to whyou thought the birth weight of the or the fetal weight was of the fetus? A. Yes. Q. Do you recall what you told me then? A. I'm not sure what I told you, but what I I mean, I think what it is, which is under six pounds. Q. Okay. A. Is that what I told you? Q. I think that's well, I can't answer that. I'm not allowed to. A. Okay. That's what I have thought always, so Q. Let's go down to the operative findings on this

,	Page 86	,	Page MR. GOLDBERG: 000187. With your permission, I'm
1	approximately 7.5 pounds." Do you see that?	1	
2	A. I do.	2	going to give this to
3	Q. And so you had this document well before you met	3	MR. RUBIN; That's fine. THE WITNESS: Is this for me or for him?
4	with me?	4	
5	A. Correct.	5	MR. GOLDBERG: The Hearing Officer has all these.
6	Q. Does this change your opinion as to what the	6	THE WITNESS: Okay.
7	weight of the fetus was?	7	Q. (By Mr. Rubin.) So where on 000187 does it say
8	A. Not at all.	8	what you say, that the fetus was not weighed?
9	Q. Okay. The person who made these notes is she an	9	A. Yes, it does.
10	attending surgeon, Lisa Moore, MD?	10	Q. Can you point that out to me?
11	A. The person who wrote the who dictated the	11	A. Yes. Okay. So on the right-hand side, it says,
12		12	"Gross Anomalies." Nothing is recorded. "Resuscitation,"
13	Q. Yes. Can you tell can you tell from this	13	not recorded. "Neonatal," dah, dah, dah, dah. Birth
14	document who entered these operative findings?	14	Weight, blank.
15	 A. Let's see. I can I don't know who dictated 	15	Q. It's blank.
16	this, but I can tell you from my experience that attending	16	A. "Male/female," blank.
17	surgeons do not dictate op reports. Residents do.	17	Q. Okay. So this in your mind reflects that there
18	Q. Okay. I see also here under the attending	18	was no actual weight taken?
19	surgeon, "Surgeon: Sarah Woods, MD, R-2 and Lisa Moore."	19	A. Correct.
20	A. Correct.	20	Q. Would it be reasonable to rely upon whatever
21	Q. "Assistant Surgeon: Sarah Decker, MD."	21	rely upon this report as a reasonable assessment of what
22	A. Yes.	22	birth weight was?
23	Q. Could one of them made this entry regarding the	23	A. No.
24	birth weight?	24	Q. So it would not be reasonable for whichever one of
25	A. Yes.	25	these surgeons or doctors held the fetus, it would not be
4 5 6	don't tell me, but how do you think they arrived at this birth weight, approximately 7.5 pounds? A. I think that they held up the fetus and said, "This feels approximately 7.5 pounds."	3 4 5 6	 A. Correct. It would not be reasonable. Q. So then they should not have entered this here, should they? A. Correct. Q. And so you would not you would not rely upon
7	Q. Okay. And did you ever you never saw the	7	
8	fetus, did you, other than the head?	8	this?
9	A. After the delivery, no.	9	A. No. O. "This" meaning that weight?
10	Q. Okay. You never weighed it?	10	This" meaning that weight? A. The weight, yes, I would not.
11	A. No.	11	MR. RUBIN: Okay. If I could just have a moment.
12	Q. So this is suffice it, this is the only record	12	Okay. I have no further questions. Thank you, Dr. Sella.
13	that so there were no other records that you know of	13	MR. THOMPSON: One moment, Doctor.
14	regarding someone actually trying to weigh the weigh the	14	THE WITNESS: Yes.
	fetus other than this one, is there?	15	MR. THOMPSON: Can we admit Exhibit 17 or at least
16	A. On the contrary. There's a record showing that	16	
17	the fetus was not weighed.	17	-00187. MR. GOLDBERG: I'm going to move I'm going to
18	Q. Okay. And where is that?	18	all of Exhibit 17.
19	MR. GOLDBERG: Our Exhibit 17 is the hospital	19	MR. RUBIN: Yeah, I would have no objection to
	records.	20	
20	MAD DISTANT All vight	21	Exhibit 17 provided that it is nothing more than the medical
20 21	MR. RUBIN: All right.		records of UNM.
21 22	MR. GOLDBERG: And if you look to	22	
21	MR. GOLDBERG: And if you look to MR. RUBIN: To the Bate stamp?	23	MR. GOLDBERG: I'll represent that my
21 22	MR. GOLDBERG: And if you look to		

	Page 94		Page
1	that the fetus stops gaining weight when the fetal demise is	1	A. The actual date, May 11th.
1	effected.	2.	Q. May 11th?
	MR, RUBIN: Right. Okay. I'm sorry.	3	A. Yeah.
3	A. Okay. So under 6 pounds; 5 pounds, 13 ounces.	4	Q. Okay. And she was given she did not take t
4		5	wasn't Pitocin
5	Q. Would that be would that be a weight that is	6	A. Misoprostol.
6	consistent with a fetus in the 35th week of pregnancy, a		Q. Misoprostol on day one, the 10th?
7	gestational age of 35 weeks?	7	A. On day one she was given I administered the
8	A. Yes.	8	
9	MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you. I have no further	9	Misoprostol vaginally. She was not given any buccally. On
10	questions at this time.	10	day two she was given Misoprostol vaginally, and she took
11	MR. THOMPSON: Okay. I've got a couple questions.	11	one dose buccally at 3:00 p.m.
12	THE WITNESS: Yes.	12	Q. And then did not take the second does at
13	EXAMINATION	13	A. Nine p.m.
14	BY MR, THOMPSON	14	Q nine p.m.?
15	Q. On -0002 when you talked about the two types of	15	A. Correct.
16	cesareans, you used the term "risk". Is that a different	16	Q. On day two?
17	risk cesarean or different risk with regard to your	17	A. The 11th.
	procedure after the cesareans are done?	18	MR. THOMPSON: The 11th. Okay. That's all the
18	A. It's a different risk of the risk of uterine	19	questions I have. You remain under oath, because you're
19		20	going to be recalled by your counsel, but you're free to
20	rupture is increased with the classical C-section.	21	step aside now. It's 11:30.
21	Q. Okay. So the C-section she had presented a lower		MR. RUBIN: Well, it's
22	risk for uterine rupture?	22	MR. THOMPSON: And we have to call someone out
23	A. Correct.	23	order. I'll check on procedure. We can go off the record
24	Q. The symptom where you first thought there was a	24	
25	possible uterine rupture, the symptom of that was the change	25	for this.
		1	
	Page 95		
1		1	(Note: A discussion held off the record.)
1 2	Page 95 in station? A. Correct.	i 2	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record.
1200	Page 95 in station?		(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned
2	Page 95 in station? A. Correct.	2	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit.
2 3 4	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than	2 3	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned
2 3 4 5	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030	2 3 4	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit.
2 3 4	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and	2 3 4 5	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it.
2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th.	2 3 4 5 6	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter	2 3 4 5 6 7	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, plean
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, plean. A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney, Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the first day,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, plead. A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department? A. Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the if you think of it as the first day, second day, third day, it probably is helpful.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the if you think of it as the first day, second day, third day, it probably is helpful. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) Okay. So either in the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, plead. A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department? A. Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the if you think of it as the first day, second day, third day, it probably is helpful. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) Okay. So either in the context of first, second or third or the actual day, that is	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department? A. Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences. Q. And is that in the School of Medicine?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the if you think of it as the first day, second day, third day, it probably is helpful. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) Okay. So either in the context of first, second or third or the actual day, that is the 11:20 p.m. on	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	(Note: A discussion held off the record.) MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney. Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department? A. Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences. Q. And is that in the School of Medicine? A. Yes. Q. And University of San Francisco University of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 95 in station? A. Correct. Q. And I just want to make sure I understand the timeline. I apologize. You all understand it better than I, but I think for the record -0030 MR. GOLDBERG: That's the night of the 11th and the morning of the 12th. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) So following about a quarter down to 11:20 A. Yes. Q. That is 11:20 a.m. on the A. It's 11:20 p.m. Q. P.m. on the MR. GOLDBERG: Night of the 11th. On the night of the if you think of the MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. Let's have the doctor MR. GOLDBERG: But if you think of it as if you think of it as the if you think of it as the first day, second day, third day, it probably is helpful. Q. (By Mr. Thompson.) Okay. So either in the context of first, second or third or the actual day, that is	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. THOMPSON: Back on the record. MR. DARNEY: May I request that the heat be turned down a little bit. MR. THOMPSON: Absolutely. You can request it. PHILIP D. DARNEY, MD after having been first duly sworn under oath, was questioned and testified as follows: MR. THOMPSON: Let the record reflect it is 11:30 a.m. Respondent is going to call their expert, Dr. Darney, out of order. You may proceed, Mr. Goldberg. EXAMINATION BY MR. GOLDBERG Q. Good morning. Would you state your name, ple A. Philip Darney, Q. Dr. Darney, where are you employed? A. University of California San Francisco. Q. Which department? A. Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences. Q. And is that in the School of Medicine? A. Yes.

Page 98 A. Yes, no undergraduates.	1	Service Hospital; did my public service commitment as an
O. No undergraduates, and all the graduate or	2	epidemic intelligence service officer at the Centers for
professional courses are related to the health sciences?	3	Disease Control, assigned to the Alabama State Health
	4	Department. I trained under William Brass, London School of
	5	Hygiene and Tropical Medicine and medical demography. I
	6	returned to the CDC; worked as a demographer and complete
	7	my preventative medicine residency; passed the preventative
	8	medicine boards.
	9	I returned to clinical training at Bringham Women's
AND THE RESIDENCE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPE	10	Hospital in Boston; completed my residency in obstetrics and
	11	gynecology there; worked as faculty member at Harvard
	12	Medical School for two years; moved as an Associate
	13	Professor to the Oregon Health Sciences Center
	14	Health Science University, excuse me, in Portland, Oregon;
	15	worked there for two years and then returned to UCSF where
	16	I've been for 30 years.
		Q. And you testified that you hold the title of
		Distinguish Professor. Do you hold any other academ
		positions at UCSF?
	10000	A. I've been Chief of Obstetrics and Gynecology at
		San Francisco General Hospital for 15 years. I'm the
		founding director of the Bixby Center for Global
	510/12/2	Reproductive Health. That's my current position.
		Q. Explain briefly in general to the Hearing Office
		what is the Bixby Center of Reproductive Health?
Page 99		Page :
A. It means through academic achievement,	1	A. Research and Training Institute of the University
publications and research and research grants and	2	of California focused on contraceptive development,
publications, you achieve a highest tenure track level	3	contraceptive clinical trials, evaluation of family planning
possible at the University of California.	4	programs, training in family planning. We focus research on
Q. Before I turn to your educational and professional	5	the relationship between contraceptive use and HIV disease,
background, I want to ask you a few questions about the	6	in prevention of HIV transmission and have permanent
medical school at UCSF. Have you heard of US News and World	7	research and training installations in Harare and Zimbabwe
Report rankings for higher educational institutions?	8	and Kazimba and Pina, Kathmandu and Nepal, truly a global,
A. Yes.	9	global organization.
Q. What is UCSF Medical School's US News ranking for	10	Q. How many professionals?
this academic year among all medical schools in this	11	A. About 20 faculty, and about half of them are
country?	Ī	physicians. The other half are demographers,
	13	anthropologists, psychologists.
consistently ranked in the top five medical schools in the	14	Q. I'm going to I'm going to move over there so
country.	15	the Hearing Officer can see something other than the back
Q. What is UCSF's Medical School's US ranking among	16	your head.
all medical schools with respect to women's health?	17	A. Okay.
 We're generally ranked about number two behind 	18	MR. THOMPSON: I was going to suggest that. It's
Bringham Women's Hospital.	19	probably appropriate.
Q. Let me now turn to your background. Please tell	20	Q. Are you one of founders of the Bixby Center?
	21	A. Yes, it was founded 13 years ago by by
education?	22	epidemiologist Nancy Padian and myself.
	23	Q. On top of this I put all of the exhibits in
University of California Berkley; medical student at UCSF,	24	front of you, but on the top, I put Exhibit 9. Do you see
state surgical intern at the US Public US Public Health	25	that in front of you?
	Q. No undergraduates, and all the graduate or professional courses are related to the health sciences? A. Yes. Q. What is your position? What position do you presently hold at A. I'm Distinguished Professor, Distinguished Professor of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences and of Health Policy. MR. RUBIN: May I ask? We could save some time if we agree to stipulate, both sides. MR. GOLDBERG: No, I'm going to no, I'm going to Id on't want to stipulate to Dr. Darney's experience. I want to go through it. I think it's important for the Hearing Officer, and it's important for the record. MR. THOMPSON: If he wants to produce it for the record, that's fine. Q. (By Mr. Goldberg.) How long have you been at the Medical School at UCSF? A. Since January 1981. Q. That's more than 30 years? A. Yes. Q. What does it mean to be Distinguished Professor at UCSF? Page 99 A. It means through academic achievement, publications and research and research grants and publications, you achieve a highest tenure track level possible at the University of California. Q. Before I turn to your educational and professional background, I want to ask you a few questions about the medical school at UCSF. Have you heard of US News and World Report rankings for higher educational institutions? A. Yes. Q. What is UCSF Medical School's US News ranking for this academic year among all medical schools in this country? A. I haven't read it for this academic year, but it's consistently ranked in the top five medical schools in the country. Q. What is UCSF's Medical School's US ranking among all medical schools with respect to women's health? A. We're generally ranked about number two behind Beingham Women's Hospital. Q. Let me now turn to your background. Please tell the Hearing Officer about your college and professional education? A. I was undergraduate in experimental psychology,	Q. No undergraduates, and all the graduate or professional courses are related to the health sciences? A. Yes. Q. What is your position? What position do you presently hold at — A. I'm Distinguished Professor, Distinguished Professor of Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences and of Health Policy. MR. RUBIN: May I ask? We could save some time if we agree to stipulate, both sides. MR. GOLDBERG: No, I'm going to — no, I'm going to — I don't want to stipulate to Dr. Darney's experience. I want to go through it. I think it's important for the Hearing Officer, and it's important for the record. MR. THOMPSON: If he wants to produce it for the record, that's fine. Q. (By Mr. Goldberg.) How long have you been at the Medical School at UCSF? A. Since January 1981. Q. That's more than 30 years? A. Yes. Q. What does it mean to be Distinguished Professor at UCSF? A. It means through academic achievement, publications, you achieve a highest tenure track level possible at the University of California. Q. Before I turn to your educational and professional background, I want to ask you a few questions about the medical school at UCSF. Have you heard of US News and World Report rankings for higher educational institutions? A. Yes. Q. What is UCSF Medical School's US News ranking for this academic year among all medical schools in this country? A. I haven't read it for this academic year, but it's consistently ranked in the top five medical schools in the country. Q. What is UCSF's Medical School's US ranking among all medical schools with respect to women's health? A. We're generally ranked about number two behind Bringham Women's Hospital. Q. Let me now turn to your background. Please tell the Hearing Officer about your college and professional education? A. I was undergraduate in experimental psychology,

	Page 102		Page 104
1	A. Yes.	1	the editorial board, senior editor of the Journal of
2	Q. Can you identify Exhibit 9?	2	Contraception. I'm a regular reviewer for many journals,
3	A. That's my curriculum vitae or resume.	3	including the New England Journal, Lancet, and editorialist
4	MR. GOLDBERG: Let me move Exhibit 9, Mr. Hearing	4	for both of those journals.
5	Officer.	5	Q. Is that an honorary is that an honorific
6	MR. THOMPSON: Any objection?	6	position? Does it involve work?
7	MR. RUBIN: No objection.	7	 A. No, it involves prompt response to the journals
8	MR. THOMPSON: Exhibit 9 is admitted.	8	request for scientific review.
9	Q. Make reference to Exhibit 9 if you want. I'm	9	Q. Let's turn to your research, Dr. Darney. Are you
10	going to turn to some of your academic work, first to your	10	currently a principal investigator, not just one of the
11	publications. Have you authored or coauthored any books on	11	investigators, but a principal investigator on any research
2	medicine?	12	grants currently?
	A. I've written or co-written five textbooks on	13	A. Yes, on five or slx related to contraceptive
13	ambulatory gynecologic surgery, contraception, women's	14	development and evaluation for the most part.
14	health, two of them in their 13th and 5th editions	15	Q. Over the course of your career, approximately how
15		16	many research grants have you been the principal
16	respectively. Q. And are they currently in print in those last	17	investigator?
17		18	A. I haven't counted, but I would say about a hundred
18	two, in print and adopted at various universities and	19	from various sources, national institutes of health, centers
19	medical schools around the country?	20	for disease control, pharmaceutical companies, private
20	A. Yes, I believe they're the most widely used text	21	foundations.
	of their kind in the world.	22	Q. Finally, I want to turn to your honors and awards,
22	Q. Approximately how many peer reviewed publications	23	Doctor. I say this with all experts I put on, this is not
23	have you authored or coauthored?		sometimes for people it's hard to talk about their own
	A Table is set about of 200		
24	A. I think just short of 200.	24	honors and awards, but I'm going to ask you. Have you
24	 A. I think just short of 200. Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, 	25	honors and awards, but I'm going to ask you. Have you
24	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications,	1000	
24 25	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103	25	Page 105
1 1	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles?	25	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be
24 25 1 2	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully.	25 1 2	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards?
24 25 1 2	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer	1 2 3	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes.
1 2 3 4	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications?	1 2 3 4	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards?
24 25 1 2 3 4 5	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original	1 2 3 4 5	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine
1 2 3 4 5 6	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are?
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline?	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115 116	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. Two hundred separate peer reviewed publications, Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books?	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books? A. Yes, dozens of chapters in other in colleagues'	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our work in training sex and gynecology residents and fellows,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books? A. Yes, dozens of chapters in other in colleagues' textbooks.	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our work in training sex and gynecology residents and fellows, received the Margaret Sanger Award, Planned Parenthood
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books? A. Yes, dozens of chapters in other in colleagues' textbooks. Q. Have you served as an editor or on the editorial	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our work in training sex and gynecology residents and fellows, received the Margaret Sanger Award, Planned Parenthood Federation of America for lifetime achievements in
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books? A. Yes, dozens of chapters in other in colleagues' textbooks. Q. Have you served as an editor or on the editorial board of any peer review publications?	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our work in training sex and gynecology residents and fellows, received the Margaret Sanger Award, Planned Parenthood Federation of America for lifetime achievements in reproductive health. I received the Society of Family
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 103 articles? A. Hopefully. Q. Explain what it means for an article to be peer reviewed; that is, published peer reviewed publications? A. Usually concerns original research or original reviews, which are submitted to a scholarly journal. The journal sends them out to reviewers who evaluate them for scientific integrity and determine whether they should be published or not or whether they should be revised before publication. Q. Is it generally understood in the discipline of medicine that when an article is published in a peer review journal that it passes muster among the peers in that discipline? A. Yes. Q. Have you authored or coauthored chapters in other books? You've described the five books of medicine that you, yourself, authored or coauthored. How about chapters in other books? A. Yes, dozens of chapters in other in colleagues' textbooks. Q. Have you served as an editor or on the editorial	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 105 received any honors and awards that you consider to be distinguished honors and awards? A. Yes. Q. Give some examples to the Hearing Officer? A. In 2003 I was elected to the Institute of Medicine of the National Academies. Q. Can you describe what the National Academies are? A. It's a panel of experts in various disciplines, engineering; in my case, medicine. Q. How many obstet A. In science Q. How many obstet MR. RUBIN: Let me object here. I don't think the witness is being allowed to finish his answer. A. I was going to say that there are approximately 20 obstetrician gynecologists that have been elected to National Institutes of Medicine and Q. Any I'm sorry. Go ahead. A. I recently received the my wife and I for our work in training sex and gynecology residents and fellows, received the Margaret Sanger Award, Planned Parenthood Federation of America for lifetime achievements in

	Page 114		Page 116
1	is more appropriate than, say, a state or local standard.	1	trimester abortion at the hospital in San Francisco, do you
2	Q. You're familiar from your work and experience with	2	have to go to a committee first?
3	the provision of third trimester abortions around the	3	A. Yeş.
4	country?	4	Q. And what does that committee do?
5	A. Yes, I am. We provide third trimester abortions	5	 The committee judges whether or not the
6	at our clinic. I have actually asked the clinic director	6	termination meets the two criteria we discussed, which is a
7	who I appointed to that position about our own experience	7	threat to the life or health of the pregnant woman or is the
8	when we're doing more of those procedures recently. She	8	fetal condition incompatible with meaningful life.
9	said that we'd done about 30 in the past year. I would have	9	Q. And from your experience are there hospitals where
LO	been involved in just a few of those.	10	the policies of the hospitals make it difficult for
1	Q. How many	11	committees or doctors to accept third trimester abortions?
12	A. So we and just a few other places are would be	12	A. Certainly are.
13	responsible for the bulk of the third trimester procedures	13	Q. From your experience, also well, let me, before
14	done around the country.	14	we get to this, the nursing staff in a large hospital is
15	Q. And that's what I was going to ask. How many	15	pretty is pretty sizable, correct?
16	how many locations are there in this country where third	16	A. Yes.
17	trimester abortions are regularly provided?	17	Q. Large number of nurses. Pretty heterogeneous
18	A. Less than a dozen.	18	generally?
19	Q. How many set the hospital set hospitals	19	A. Yes.
20	aside, how many freestanding clinics provide third trimester	20	Q. From your experience has the large size in
21	abortions in this country?	21	heterogeneity of nursing staffs in a hospital posed
22	A. I'm aware of only four.	22	obstacles to providing late-term; that is, third trimester
23	Q. And where are they?	23	abortions in hospitals?
24	A. Here, in Albuquerque	24	A. Yes, as well as second sometimes any kind of
25	Q. And that's the Southwest Women's Options Clinic	25	abortion.
4,0			
	Page 115		Page 11:
1	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works?	1	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How
1 2	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh.	1 2	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen?
1 2 3	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead.	1 2 3	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not
1 2 3 4	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado.	1 2 3 4	 Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to
1 2 3 4 5	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles.	1 2 3 4 5	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it
1 2 3 4 5	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me.	1 2 3 4 5	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year?	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting?	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in — in perhaps not in second trimester abortions,	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions?
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in — in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in — in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other obstacles are hospital policy, the skilled personnel, both	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico Department has established its own freestanding abortion
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 220 21	that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other obstacles are hospital policy, the skilled personnel, both nurses and physicians, hospital policies, state laws, the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico Department has established its own freestanding abortion clinic where the training that I described is accomplished.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 221 222	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in — in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other obstacles are hospital policy, the skilled personnel, both nurses and physicians, hospital policies, state laws, the right equipment, access to the right drugs and so on, a	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico Department has established its own freestanding abortion clinic where the training that I described is accomplished. It's not done in the hospital. It's done in a freestanding
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 3	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other obstacles are hospital policy, the skilled personnel, both nurses and physicians, hospital policies, state laws, the right equipment, access to the right drugs and so on, a number of obstacles.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico Department has established its own freestanding abortion clinic where the training that I described is accomplished. It's not done in the hospital. It's done in a freestanding clinic. Sometimes I don't know the particular
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 221 222	Page 115 that Dr. Sella works? A. Uh-huh. Q. Go ahead. A. New York, Maryland, Boulder, Colorado. Q. You said New York. New York or Los Angeles. A. Los Angeles, excuse me. Q. Big city. Okay. And then you said that maybe your hospital provides around 30 a year? A. Yes, recently. Q. And are there obstacles to providing third trimester abortions in a hospital that you would not expect to see when it's — they're provided in a clinic setting? A. Yes. A typical hospital that's accomplishing deliveries, for example, would not have someone who's expert in — in perhaps not in second trimester abortions, certainly not in third trimester abortion. I know that from all the hospitals I visit. I've lectured, for example, at a hospital from which ML was referred on Long Island, and they wouldn't have anyone there to provide this service. Other obstacles are hospital policy, the skilled personnel, both nurses and physicians, hospital policies, state laws, the right equipment, access to the right drugs and so on, a	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Can you explain that to the Hearing Officer? How does why does that happen? How does it happen? A. Well, you might find that nurses if you're not specialized, nurses aren't first, may not be trained to provide a specialized service, or they may not want to do it based on their religious or political attitude toward abortion. Q. And is that a problem that you see in these freestanding abortion clinics that A. No, because if you specialized, then the freestanding clinic can hire people who specifically want to do this work. At our clinic in San Francisco General Hospital, we hired people who work there who really want to do this work, have a lot of experience at it and provide excellent patient care and excellent support for the for one another and for the physicians. Q. To your knowledge does the University of New Mexico Hospital provide third trimester abortions? A. No. In fact, the University of New Mexico Department has established its own freestanding abortion clinic where the training that I described is accomplished. It's not done in the hospital. It's done in a freestanding

Page 121

Page 118

3

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

give you Arizona, for example, the university hospital is forbidden by statute from providing an abortion.

Q. And so the Medical Board's expert consultant, Dr. Bullock, says that the appropriate standard of care --

MR. RUBIN: Objection. Where's the foundation? Dr. Bullock hasn't testified yet.

MR. GOLDBERG: I'll lay -- I'll lay a foundation for this.

Q. Did you read Dr. Bullock's report in this case?

A. Yes.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

22

23

24

1

2

3

4

5

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. RUBIN: I'll object to that.

Q. Did you read ---

MR. RUBIN: Hold on. Let me object to that, because the report is not in evidence. He's not going to get it in this way. We need to discuss whether - the propriety of having this, Dr. Bullock's report, as an exhibit before we go any further.

MR. GOLDBERG: I haven't -- I haven't -- I'm going to offer it by the way as an exhibit. This is one of the exhibits that's at issue here, Mr. Hearing Officer, but first of all, I'm going to lay the foundation first. I'm not going to -- I'm not going to ask him the substance of the report.

MR. RUBIN: I thought he already -- I thought he was going into that just now.

Q. Okay. Now, let me -- would you pull out from the 1 2 stack Exhibit 12?

A. I have it.

Q. Is that the report of Dr. Bullock that you 4 reviewed in preparation for -- in your investigation and 5 6 preparation for your opinions?

MR. GOLDBERG: I'm going to move Exhibit 12. I believe Mr. Rubin has said he objects on hearsay grounds. We're prepared to argue.

MR. RUBIN: I object on several grounds, and I think I need to voir dire this witness. If Dr. Darney is saying that he rendered his opinion in this case based upon what Dr. Bullock said, I'd like to question him on that, because I don't think that's true. I think he certainly reviewed it, but if Dr. Darney is testifying that he was

16 able to determine whether the standard of care was met in 17

this case based on what Dr. Bullock said, that's not -- I 18

don't think that's the case at all. In other words, if Dr. 19

Bullock never submitted his report, how would his case be 20 any different? He needs to establish -- I mean, experts can 21

rely on other outside material as a basis for their opinion. 22

Mr. Goldberg here is - I think it's almost by slight of 23

hand, he's trying to just get it under that umbrella, but 24

that's - for him to say that he's looked at it is one 25

Page 119

MR. THOMPSON: First of all, I think he can -- I mean, if he's read the report in preparation of his exert testimony, he's able to testify about that just from reading the report.

MR. GOLDBERG: But I'm going to ask -- I'm actually -- through him I'm going to move the exhibit, and we'll do that, but I want to lay -- I want to lay a foundation for all of this. I'm entitled to lay a foundation. I understand where Mr. Rubin's coming from, but I haven't asked him any substantive questions yet about the report. I'm going to do that, but I am going to do that.

MR. THOMPSON: And I understand that, and I also think I do understand that this is partially probably rebuttal testimony for the State's expert, and so we're going to -- we're going to -- I'm going to allow it.

MR. RUBIN: Well --

MR. GOLDBERG: Let me lay my foundation, and I'm telling you I'm going to move, so you're going to have your opportunity to make the argument, and we'll let the Hearing Officer decide, but I want to lay the foundation.

MR. RUBIN: Exactly. One thing at a time.

Q. (By Mr. Goldberg.) All right. Did you read Dr. Bullock's deposition in prepar- -- in reaching your opinions?

A. Yes.

thing. For him to say that's part of what he used to rely 1 upon for his opinion is something totally different, and so 2 that is why it is not appropriate. There's no foundation. 3

Second, the way the ULA works is I sent a request for exhibits. I never got a response to that. That was months ago. You have that in the record, Mr. Hearing Officer. Last couple of days I've gotten a few -- a few exhibits except for - with some exceptions. I have never - they've never asked me for my exhibits. I've never - I'm not presenting this as my exhibit. This is a report I provided to them as a courtesy it turns out.

Now, that does not elevate it to anything more than that, and as you know, a report of an expert in district 13 14 court is hearsay, because it's not -- and Professor can correct -- former Professor can correct me if I'm wrong, but what Dr. Bullock says there, it's not a sworn statement. He 16 may contradict what's in his deposition. They have the deposition for that, but his report isn't a prior sworn statement and consistent with anything. So there's no foundation that he's relied upon it, I think, and there's nothing -- there's no rule that would allow it.

MR. GOLDBERG: I'm not --

MR, RUBIN: And it's not my exhibit. Thank you. MR. GOLDBERG: All right. I'm not offering it on

the basis that he relied on it. He can testify about it --25

31 (Pages 118 to 121)

Page 125

Page 122

about it -- he can testify about it, because he relied on it, but I'm offering it actually -- I'm offering it for its -- for itself. All right. Okay. That's number one.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Number two, I'm going to let Ms. Schmidt Nowara discussed the -- the Issues with respect to the request for exhibits and the exchange of exhibits and whatever, because I don't think that what Mr. Rubin said was accurate, but Dr. Darney testified in his -- in his engagement in this case was, one, to opine about the standard of care that was done and to respond to Dr. Bullock's opinions. Well, as I've said to you, Dr. Bullock's opinions have been a moving target. They have been a moving target and -- but his opinions at one point --

MR. RUBIN: We don't have an opinion yet in the record of Dr. Bullock.

MR. THOMPSON: Well, we have an opinion. It's whether or not we have an evidentiary piece of paper, which is his expert report. We have an opinion that's been disclosed. The question is do we have Exhibit 12 as an exhibit.

MR. GOLDBERG: That's correct, and Dr. Darney's out -- he's out of turn, and so he's not going to be around 22 to respond to whatever new opinions Dr. Bullock may provide 23 here, but the big issue in this case is whether this 24 obstetric standard of care that Dr. Bullock is promoting or

after case recognizes that a disclosed -- a disclosed expert 1

falls within that category. This is a statement, because 2 the statement becomes the admission of the party. All

3 right. So, one, it's not hearsay under -801(D). It's also 4

not hearsay, because it does not -- because it does not -for the purposes that we are using it for, it does not fall 6 within the definition of hearsay. 7

The definition of hearsay is a statement other than one 8 made by declarant while testifying at trial offered in 9 evidence to prove the truth of the matter asserted. Well, 10 we are not seeking to offer Exhibit 12, Dr. Bullock's 11 statement, for the truth of his opinions. We contest his 12 opinions. We are offering this as a typical -- the fact 13 that he made the statement. We want to get in the record 14 the fact that he has said that the standard of care is what 15 he says the standard of care is and why. We are not 16 offering it for the truth, and again, the cases support 17 18 that.

MR. THOMPSON: But you're offering it that it is his opinion.

20 MR. GOLDBERG: No, no, actually we're -- I don't -- I don't know what his opinion is.

MR. RUBIN: Is it to his credibility?

MR. GOLDBERG: No, no. It's to - it's to lay the foundation for Dr. Darney's opinions. Okay. That's number

Page 123

19

21

22

23

24

4

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

an abortion standard of care is going to be applicable. I want to deal with this, and in order to deal with this productively, we need to get -- we need to get some information in the record through Dr. Bullock's report on what he is providing here. So let's turn -- let's turn to the basis of the objection, which is, is it hearsay.

MR. THOMPSON: Hearsay.

MR. GOLDBERG: It is not hearsay. It is incorrect to say that all expert reports are hearsay. All right. First of all, the -- an expert report of your own expert is hearsay, because it is an out-of-court statement that is -would be offered for the truth of that statement, but the expert report of the opposing party's expert is not hearsay. It is not hearsay, because first of all, the basic definition of hearsay --

MR. RUBIN: We'll have to take a look. MR. GOLDBERG: Sure. The basic definition of hearsay says that --

MR. RUBIN: May I look over --

MR. GOLDBERG: Sure. You may. 11-801, definitions, defines hearsay, and then it says statements which are not hearsay. All right. That is -801(D)(2), "Admission by a party opponent," D -- let me finish --"Statement by the party's agent or servant concerning a

matter within the scope of the agency." Case after case

one. I'm not quite done yet with my -- with my -- I have 1 three bases --2

MR. THOMPSON: All right. 3

MR. GOLDBERG: - as to why it's not hearsay.

One, it's an admission of a party opponent under 5 -801(D)(2)(d) -- I mean -801(D)(2)(d). Two, it's not 6

hearsay under the definition, and three, it's not hearsay 7

because we're also offering it as for the fact it is the 8

basis for the Board's charge here, and we're offering it for the fact of the basis for the Board's charge here. 10

Finally, of course, all of this can be beside the point, because the rules that govern this hearing explicitly authorize the Hearing Officer to admit hearsay evidence when that evidence is the type of evidence -- let me get the language of the statute.

MR. RUBIN: The type of evidence that people rely upon in the conduct of serious affairs.

MR. GOLDBERG: 'That's right. People rely on in the conduct of serious affairs. Now, certainly Mr. Rubin and the Board are precluded to say that they -- that they -that what is in their own expert's report is not something that they are relying on in the conduct of their serious affairs. So for all of those reasons, one, it's not hearsay. Two, the Board -- for the three reasons that I've

given, and two, because the Hearing Officer not only is 25

32 (Pages 122 to 125)

Page 126

1

13

14

15

21

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

24

25

allowed to, but as I read the New Mexico cases, should admit hearsay if it is the type of information that people rely on in the conduct of their serious affairs, and the Board cannot say that they are not relying on Dr. Bullock's report in the conduct of this serious affair.

MR. RUBIN: Mr. Thompson, I think I actually just sald that. We are not relying upon Dr. Bullock's report in the conduct of this affair.

MR. GOLDBERG: He did.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

13

16

17

19

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

23

MR. RUBIN: If he is going to rely upon it, I think this goes to the point before about the charging 11 document. Once we have an NCA, I think we proceed. That's when this case begins. It's a Board complaint. Now, Mr. Thompson, if you feel like I will -- Mr. Goldberg is correct 14 in that you have discretion. We do not strictly apply these 15 rules here, but I think Mr. Goldberg is incorrect in reading that hearsay rule. If there is some case that says that somehow this man, Dr. Bullock, is the party opponent, I'd 18 like to see it. He seems very well prepared. Yet, I didn't see any citation to the actual case that says that, and if 20 I'm wrong -- if there's a case that says that, I will 21 withdraw my objection, but he's not a party opponent.

22 MR. GOLDBERG: I said he's an agent. The language 23 of the statute, the rule is an agent of a party opponent. 24 Clearly the Medical Board is the party opponent here, and it 25

halfway done with my direct.

MR. RUBIN: Well, so if I understand what Mr. 2 Goldberg is saying, we have to have today's -- he spent 3 about a half hour on his qualifications, which I would have 4 stipulated to, and this man has to leave at 2:00 o'clock, 5 and we haven't had lunch yet. Maybe I'm getting angry 6 because I haven't eaten lunch yet, but I get like what, 40 7 minutes without eating to cross-examine this man, and he's 8 their most important witness? That is not fair, and if that 9 -- and this is not a criminal proceeding. If Mr. Goldberg 10 was incompetent in scheduling this - Mr. Darney, that's 11 nothing we can use for Dr. Sella. This is not fair at all. 12

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, we were -

MR. RUBIN: Either he can take another flight or we can continue this.

MR. GOLDBERG: We actually were prepared to put on 16 Dr. Darney first. Mr. Rubin wanted to put on Dr. Sella 17 first, and it's his case. I couldn't argue, but we -- we've 18 told Mr. Rubin for a number of weeks that Dr. Darney had to 19 get out of town this afternoon. 20

MR. RUBIN: I was told 4:00 o'clock.

MR. GOLDBERG: That's his plane. His plane is at 22 4:00 o'clock. He's going to have to leave here around 2:30. 23 That's what I said, between 2:00 and 2:30. His plane's at 24 25 4:00 o'clock.

Page 127

```
doesn't take -- it doesn't take a lot of court decisions to
1
    say that a disclosed expert is not an agent of the party
2
3
    opponent.
4
```

MR. RUBIN: So are there court decisions or not? MR. THOMPSON: Here's what I'm going to do, I'm going to -- I'm going to permit the questioning regarding Exhibit 12. Let me --

MR. RUBIN: Sure.

MR. THOMPSON: -- rule on the admissibility of that exhibit after lunch, so I can -- I can formulate a coherent response for the record. I will say that it appears there's a report by the State's expert that Respondent's expert has relied on for his opinion. So I'll permit questions as to -- as to the report, and I will decide whether to admit Exhibit 12 afterwards.

MR. RUBIN: On that point, just about lunch, what -- what is your pleasure, Mr. Hearing Officer? It is past 12:00.

MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Goldberg, I don't know when the 19 flight is, and I don't know --20

MR. GOLDBERG: Yeah, ultimately, we have to get 21 Dr. Darney out of here by, 2:00, 2:15 or so, 2:30. I am -22

MR. RUBIN: It's not fair.

MR. THOMPSON: Tell me how you want --24 25

MR. GOLDBERG: Yeah, I am slightly more than

Page 129

MR. THOMPSON: Let's do this. So how much more --1 halfway done. How much more on direct do we have? 2 MR. GOLDBERG: Probably another 15, 20 minutes. 3

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. So that takes us to 12:30. 4 MR. RUBIN: Okay. 5

MR. THOMPSON: We can have lunch until 1:15. 6 MR. RUBIN: 1:15.

7

MR. THOMPSON: That gives you an hour and 15 minutes of cross.

MR. RUBIN: Okay. So at 12:30 we stop?

MR. THOMPSON: Mr. Goldberg?

MR. GOLDBERG: I'll try. I'll try. I mean --

MR. RUBIN: Please do try for me. Thank you. MR. THOMPSON: Let's do -- let's do 20 more

minutes of direct and decide at that point whether we have to cut lunch. I do want to give -- we're going to have enough for lunch, but I do want to give enough time for cross, so --

MR. GOLDBERG: I'm not seeking to -- I'm not seeking to constrain Mr. Rubin's cross-examination.

20 MR. THOMPSON: Okay. I understand that. I'm just 21 trying to build it in in the period. So it's 12:15. Let's 22 23 proceed to 20 to 1:00.

MR. GOLDBERG: All right.

MR. THOMPSON: Okay. We were on - discussing

Page 132 Page 130 A. No, it's not. 1 Sella Exhibit 12. 1 Q. To third trimester abortions performed on woman Q. (By Mr. Goldberg.) Do you have Exhibit 12 in 2 2 who has had a prior C-section? 3 3 front of you? 4 A. No, it's not. A. Yes. Q. What is your understanding, Dr. Darney, as to the 5 Q. To ML in particular? 5 6 A. No. standard of care that Dr. Bullock asserts should be applied Q. Are there differences -- strike that. In your 7 7 in this case? review of Dr. Bullock's deposition, did you understand that 8 8 A. Well, based on his statement, deposition and this Dr. Bullock saw an equivalence between providing a third 9 9 Information and briefly stated, his opinion is that this trimester abortion to a woman like ML and a delivery of a 10 care should have been provided in a hospital. 10 11 stillborn baby near term? O. Would you turn to the third page of Dr. Bullock's 11 A. Yes. He didn't distinguish on the types of care, 12 12 report, Exhibit 12, Bate stamped -121. specialized procedures and so on without regard to this 13 13 A. And you're not -- you're not asking for other 14 particular case. 14 opinions about this report? 15 Q. Now, I want to ask you, from your experience, you Q. No. No. Just right now, I'm just talking about 15 -- you testified that you have special expertise in the -- and would you read into the record the first full 16 16 17 obstetrics, which is the delivery of live babies, right? sentence on page -121. 17 18 MR. RUBIN: Let me state -- hold on. Let me just 18 Q. And you also testified that you have specialized 19 make my objection for the record. He's reading things into 19 expertise in the delivery of -- termination of pregnancy the record that hasn't been admitted. 20 20 21 services, abortions? MR. THOMPSON: Standing. If I, in fact, deny 21 22 A. Yes. admission of 12, I'll strike the reading of the paragraph, Q. From your experience is there an equivalence 23 23 but let's go ahead and do that. 24 between the -- an abortion procedure and the delivery of a 24 MR. RUBIN: Thank you. 25 live baby? Freestanding clinic is an unacceptable location 25 Page 133 Page 131 1 A. No. for a labor in a patient with a prior cesarean section much Q. And for purposes of applying a standard of care, 2 less an induction with no uterine monitoring and excessive can you describe to the Hearing Officer the pertinent dose of uterine stimulants." 3 3 differences, why you would expect a different standard of 4 Q. And from your review of Dr. Bullock's deposition, 4 5 care? what was your understanding as the basis for Dr. Bullock's 5 A. Well, clearly the most important difference is the opinion that the standard of care was that a third trimester 6 6 intent to deliver a healthy, live baby. That's the parental 7 abortion on a woman with a prior C-section had to occur in a 7 expectation. It's exactly the opposite in the case of a 8 8 hospital? 9 termination. 9 A. Risk of uterine rupture. Q. And does that govern -- does that -- does that 10 10 Q. And what literature did Dr. Bullock rely on? effect the way then a doctor performs his or her services? A. I believe he relied on the ACOG Practice 11 11 A. Yes, for example, one would certainly not drain 12 Bulletins. 12 the fetal calvarium in order to accomplish the delivery when Q. Was it 115? 13 13 -- except in extreme circumstances to save the life of the 14 A. 115 and an earlier one. 14 woman, of the laboring woman. You wouldn't do that in the 15 Q. Would you look at Exhibit 10? 15 case of obstetrical delivery, while as Dr. Sella described A. I've got it. That's 115. 16 16 Q. Now, do you have an opinion as to whether an -that's -- that's routine in accomplishing a third trimester 17 17 18 abortion. does 115 set out an obstetric standard of care? 18 O. How about specifically with respect to the 19 19 A. Yes. application of uterine stimulants for the purpose of 20 Q. What is it? 20 preparing or softening the uterus, are there pertinent A. The tenets of this is to accomplish a live 21 21 differences between an abortion and a live birth? 22 22 delivery. A. Very different, because we're talking in this --23 Q. You have an opinion about whether an obstetric 23 in this particular case and all third trimester abortions standard of care is an appropriate standard of care to apply 24 24 about a dead fetus. You're not concerned about the effects 25 to third trimester abortions generally? 34 (Pages 130 to 133)